
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

Thursday, 25 November 2021 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 6 December 2021 at 2.00 

pm. 
 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Councillor Ted Fenton (Chairman), Councillor Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), Councillor 

 Rosa Bolger, Councillor Maxine Crossland, Councillor Harry Eaglestone, Councillor Duncan  

Enright, Councillor Steve Good, Councillor Jeff Haine, Councillor Richard Langridge, Councillor  

Nick Leverton, Councillor Dan Levy, Councillor Lysette Nicholls, Councillor Carl Rylett,  

Councillor Harry St John and Councillor Ben Woodruff 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2021. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 9 - 76) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

5.   Progress on Enforcement Cases (Pages 77 - 86) 

Purpose 

To inform the Sub-Committee of the current situation and progress in respect of 

enforcement investigations. 

Recommendation 

That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations be noted. 

 

6.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 87 - 100) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 8 November 2021 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Councillor Ted Fenton (Chairman), Councillor Joy Aitman (Vice-Chair), 

Councillor Maxine Crossland, Councillor Harry Eaglestone, Councillor Duncan Enright, 

Councillor Jeff Haine, Councillor Richard Langridge, Councillor Nick Leverton, Councillor Dan 

Levy, Councillor Lysette Nicholls, Councillor Carl Rylett, Councillor Harry St John and 

Councillor Ben Woodruff 

Officers: Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development Management) and Adrienne Frazer 

(Strategic Support Officer) 

31 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2021 were approved and signed by the 

Chairman as a correct record. 

32 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bolger and Good. 

33 Declarations of Interest  

A declaration of interest was received from Councillor Fenton relating to application number 

25 determined under delegated powers, which concerned Cokethorpe School.  Councillor 

Fenton formerly worked at the school. 

34 Applications for Development  

The Sub-Committee received the report of the Business Manager – Development 

Management, giving details of applications for development, copies of which had been 

circulated.  

RESOLVED: That the decisions on the following applications be as indicated, the reasons for 

approval or refusal to be as recommended in the report of the Business Manager – 

Development Management, subject to any amendments as detailed below:- 

At the last minute, due to unavoidable circumstances, the officers responsible for the 

applications under consideration were unable to attend the committee.  The Business Manager 

– Development Management stood in and supported the meeting.  In the light of these 

circumstances it was agreed by the committee that all recommendations and conditions were 

subject to clarification and also that the committee delegated authority to the Chairman and 

officers to amend conditions if further information came to light or, alternatively, that the 

application(s) be brought back to a future committee to resolve. 

 

The Chairman noted that this committee was to have been the Senior Planner (Development 

Management), Miranda Clark’s, final meeting before moving on.  The Chairman, committee, 

and Business Manager – Development Management thanked Miranda Clark for her work over 

the last twenty plus years and sent her their best wishes for the future. 

The Chairman, committee, and Business Manager – Development Management also sent their 

best wishes for their wellbeing to the Interim Development Manager, Abby Fettes, and the 

Senior Planner (Development Management), Miranda Clark. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/November2021 

 

20/02720/FUL  Building 2 And 3 Windrush Park Road, Witney 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, introduced the application for 

the demolition of an existing redundant, asbestos clad, industrial building (building 2 and part 

of building 3F) to provide new car parking for 135 cars together with associated works. 

A public submission was received from Jeremy Hadfield representing Hale Architecture in 

support of the application. Mr Hadfield gave an overview of his client’s aspirations to create a 

new carpark and two new industrial units which were covered by the three linked applications 

being heard at this committee.  He advised that his client’s intention was to refurbish and 

revitalise the site. 

Following a question from Councillor St John about whether the surface water would be going 

into the public foul water sewer, Mr Hadfield explained that following an assessment there was 

a surface water strategy in place which included a climate change plan; and that the discharge 

would be the same as at present, that is, discharging into the existing network. 

Councillors Langridge and Leverton asked about the creation of the car park, the building that 

is to be demolished and the type of buildings being created and particularly whether this would 

increase the demand for car parking.  Mr Hadfield advised that the building being demolished 

was obsolete; that the ancillary office space being created was no more than 10% of the new 

build space and that there would be no additional transport on site.  He explained that 20% of 

the car parking spaces would be electric vehicle charging points and that the car parking spaces 

would be of the same number as currently but would be located closer to the offices. He 

added that this was particularly important to the NHS staff whose offices were on site. 

Councillor Levy asked about arrangements for people who travelled to the site not by car.  Mr 

Hadfield informed the committee that each new building had secure bicycle storage and that 

the section 106 agreement included the provision of two new bus shelters on Burford Road. 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, then presented his report.  He 

advised that the history of the site as a former aerodrome explained the layout of the site.  He 

suggested that it was expected that moving the car park further into the estate would increase 

its usage. As a result of this the roads on the estate were likely to have fewer cars parked 

along them making access for HGV vehicles easier.  He confirmed that the buildings being 

removed were obsolete. The Business Manager – Development Management then 

recommended approval of the application subject to the condition on drainage being clarified 

to state that the surface water drainage would not discharge into the foul sewerage system 

and would meet Thames Water’s comments on the application including:  

“No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either:- all 
water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows to serve the 
development have been completed; or - a development and infrastructure phasing plan has 
been agreed with Thames Water to allow development to be occupied. Where a development 
and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in 
accordance with the agreed development and infrastructure phasing plan. Reason - The 
development may lead to no / low water pressure and network reinforcement works are 
anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to accommodate 
additional demand anticipated from the new development". 

Councillor Woodruff proposed that the application be approved as per officers’ 

recommendations subject to the conditions detailed in the report and including the conditions 

about drainage. He stated that he knew the site and that the buildings were tired and needed 

improvement. 

Page 4



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/November2021 

 

Councillor Enright joined the meeting. 

 

This was seconded by Councillor Langridge who welcomed the investment in the area and the 

positive addition to the area’s employment facilities. 

The officers’ recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

Councillor Enright abstained. 

 

Approved 

 

The Chairman noted that because the three applications on Windrush Park Road, Witney 

were closely connected, and that the committee spent the majority of its time considering the 

first (above) application, comments noted on the first application (above), also applied where 

relevant to the other two applications on Windrush Park Road.  

 

21/02248/FUL  Gateway House, Windrush Park Road, 21, Witney 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, introduced the application for 

the erection of nine industrial units, to include external ancillary service areas, car and cycle 

parking. 

A public submission had been received from Jeremy Hadfield during application number 

20/02720/FUL Building 2 And 3, Windrush Park Road (above) in support of the application.  

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, presented his report containing 

a recommendation of approval.  He advised that conditions were needed on the following 

issues: drainage of surface water, as in the first application and for CCTV to be provided in 

line with Police recommendations. 

Councillor Fenton asked about the quality of insulation of the office spaces.  The officer 

advised that this would be covered by building regulations. 

Councillor St John asked about the proportion of each of the specific classes of industrial 

space being created.  Officers agreed to clarify the proportion of usage for each class. 

Councillor Levy noted that the Town Council had objected because there was not enough 

access for pedestrians and cyclists. The Chairman noted that there is an access condition in 

the application.  The Business Manager – Development Management advised that there is a 

cycle way along Burford Way. 

The Chairman gave Mr Hadfield the opportunity to contribute to the discussion.  Mr Hadfield 

advised the committee that safe routes to the site had been indicated to Oxfordshire County 

Council Highways Department.  He also advised that the buildings had been designed flexibly 

for both B2 and B8 class of usage. 

Following a question from Councillor St John about preserving dark skys, the officer advised 

that appropriate secure lighting would be included in the design. 

Councillor Langridge proposed that the application be granted as per officers’ 

recommendations subject to the conditions detailed in the report and above.   

This was seconded by Councillor Leverton. 

Page 5



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/November2021 

The officers’ recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved  

 

 

21/02929/FUL  Land At Windrush Park, Windrush Park Road, 21, Witney 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, introduced the application for 

the erection of 2 industrial units (Use Class E(g)iii, B2 and B8), to include external, ancillary 

service areas, car and cycle parking. 

A public submission had been received from Jeremy Hadfield during application number 

20/02720/FUL Building 2 And 3, Windrush Park Road (above) in support of the application. 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, presented his report containing 

a recommendation of approval.  He advised that the car parking would be closer to the office 

spaces than previously and that the condition on drainage from application 20/02720/FUL 

Building 2 And 3, Windrush Park Road would also apply to this application. 

Councillor St John asked about the available turning space for HGV vehicles.  The officer 

advised that there was enough space although it may be difficult to accommodate four HGVs 

simultaneously. 

Councillor Haine proposed that the application be granted as per officers’ recommendations 

subject to the conditions detailed in the report and above applications.   

This was seconded by Councillor Woodruff. 

The officers’ recommendation of approval was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Approved 

 

 

21/02896/FUL  The Newlands Inn, 45 - 47 Newland Street, 31,  Eynsham 

The Business Manager – Development Management, Phil Shaw, introduced the application for 

the conversion of a public house to a residential dwelling and presented his report containing a 

recommendation of refusal.  He advised that although the applicant states that the public 

house is not commercially viable, they had not provided the evidence required to show 

enough effort had been made to market it or to justify the claim of it not being commercially 

viable and that this is the reason for the recommendation of refusal. 

Councillor Levy felt that the application should be refused due to the thriving market for 

public houses in Eynsham. With the plans to develop the village in mind, he felt that the public 

house would be a success and he knew of no evidence that the applicants had tried to market 

it. 

Councillor Levy proposed that the application be refused as per officers’ recommendations.   

This was seconded by Councillor Rylett who stated that there were strong feelings in the 

community to retain it as a public house.  He asked what would be needed for the applicant to 

be able to re-apply.  The officer advised that the Planning Department would look for evidence 

of marketing the venue for its current use and would assess the results of the marketing.  He 

Page 6



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

08/November2021 

advised the committee that during the pre-application stage the applicants were advised about 

the information that was needed around marketing and were informed of the tests that would 

need to be passed with respect to marketing. 

Following a discussion Councillors Woodruff, Leverton and Langridge expressed their support 

for the officer recommendation. 

The officers’ recommendation of refusal was then put to the vote and was carried.  

 

Refused 

35 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  The following issues were raised: 

Item Number 1 

Councillor Fenton requested that further information regarding the variation of condition 3 

(materials) in this application be sent to him. 

Item Number 9 

Councillor Eaglestone raised the issue of the introduction of the Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL).  He asked when the CIL would be in place so that funding from all new build 

homes could be provided to the community. 

Councillor Haine responded saying the matter had been discussed with senior officers that 

morning, however introducing a CIL is takes time.  He anticipated it taking a further 6 months 

to complete. 

Item Number 31 

Councillor Eaglestone raised the issue of complaints from local people about the social club on 

the Eagle Industrial Estate, Witney.  The officer advised that Planning has no control over 

these issues;  this was a matter for Environmental Health and planning permission was not 

needed for smoking shelter in that location. 

Item Number 62 

Councillor Eaglestone raised a query relating the external lighting. The officer agreed to liaise 

with Councillor Eaglestone outside the meeting. 

Item Number 80 

Councillor Fenton requested that further information regarding the construction of 160 

dwellings and provision of public open space in this application be sent to him. 

 

Finally the Chairman thanked Mr Shaw (Business Manager – Development Management) for 

stepping in to support the meeting at the last minute. 

 

The Meeting closed at 2.50 pm 

 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 6th December 2021 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Page Number Application Number Address Officer 

11 21/01565/FUL 35 Taphouse Avenue, Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

16 

 

21/02364/FUL Land (E) 432925 (N)209696 

Downs Road, Curbridge, 

Witney 
 

Abby Fettes 

 

28 

 

21/02577/FUL 35 Shillbrook Avenue, 

Carterton 

 

Kelly Murray 

 

32 

 

21/02593/FUL Windyridge Crawley Road, 

Witney 

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

37 

 

21/02628/FUL 1 St Marys Court, 

 Witney 

 

Abby Fettes 

 

50 

 

21/02805/FUL 48 Sherbourne Road, 

Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

55 

 

21/02906/S73 Fish Hill Farm Wilcote Road 

North Leigh, Witney 

 

Miranda Clark 

 

61 

 

21/03027/FUL Old Farmhouse Burford Road 

Black Bourton, Bampton 

 

Esther Hill 

 

71 

 

21/03302/FUL Land Adjacent to Clovelly 

Cottage White Oak Green, 

Hailey 

 

Kelly Murray 

 

Page 10



 

Application Number 21/01565/FUL 

Site Address 35 Taphouse Avenue 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX28 1JL 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 435599 E       210855 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Sub division of dwelling to form a large house of multiple occupation and a self-contained studio flat and 

associated works (Retrospective) 

 

 

Page 11



Applicant Details: 

Mr Chris Dominikowski 

13 Finmore Road 

Oxford 

OX2 9AE 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish / Town 

Council 

Witney Town Council object to this application. The scheme represents over-

development of a site and is not in accordance with the General Principles of Policy 

OS2, the scheme does not form a logical complement to the existing pattern of 

development and the character of the area, the potential increased occupancy is not 

compatible with adjoining uses and members expressed concern for the harmful 

impact on the amenity of existing occupants. Further, the proposed use is not 

compliant with Policy OS4 with regard to harm to the use or enjoyment of land and 

buildings nearby including living conditions in residential properties. 

 

Witney Town Council shares the concerns of the Highways Authority, the 

development does not have adequate parking and the proposal does not address 

any provision for safe cycle storage. The lack of parking impacts all residents in the 

cul-de-sac making the proposal anti-social. 

 

OCC Highways Given the location the details are acceptable. 

Please condition the cycle parking as plan. 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No comments received 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted with the application.  It has been summarised as; 

The house, 35 Taphouse Avenue is semi-detached with 1-metre path between the house and the 

boundary on the right leading to the rear garden. It is part of terraced houses estate, uniform in 

materials and design with their front facing a green space and ample parking. 

 

The applicant bought the house in 2016 and rented it out first to a family. He had later employed 

Norton Architects to convert the loft, under PD rights, to add two more bedrooms and a bathroom 

(the smallest bedroom at first floor was lost by the necessary stairs to the loft rooms). The Completion 

Certificate, dated 30/04/2018, was issued by the Building Control.  The applicant, Mr. Dominikowski, did 

not realized he needed to apply for planning permission for the Change of Use from a single-family 

dwelling to HMO and applied in 2019 only to the Licensing and Management of HMO.  

 

On the ground floor the former living room and conservatory were converted into a self-contained 

studio flat, part of HMO but independent of shared facilities such as bathroom, kitchen or laundry. 

On the other side of the entrance lobby there is a kitchen/diner and, accessed from the yard, utility 

room and WC. These serve the four bedsits at first and attic floors. First floor contains one double and 

a single bedsit and a shared bathroom while the converted loft has two single bedsits and a bathroom. 

The large rear dormer, added at the time of attic conversion and with wall in pebbledash, to match the 

house walls, ensure sufficient headroom and windows for the bathroom and stair landing. 

Page 12



At present there are six tenants in total, though the HMO Licence is for seven people. 

This application seeks permission for Change of Use from a single-family dwelling to four bedsits (one 

double and three single) and a self-contained studio flat. 

The outbuilding - originally a storage built as PD 

The side passage leads between the side of the house and the boundary with No. 33 to the rear garden 

with an outbuilding of 42 sq. metres close to the rear boundary. It was built in 2018 under Permitted 

Development rights as a storage for the house.  

The application for Change of Use from a storage to a dwelling is seeking to add a one person or a 

couple to the existing HMO in the main house. I would become a one bedroom 42 sq. metres annexe to 

the HMO in the house for which the planning permission is sought at the same time, retrospectively. 

Currently, the five lodgers in the four bedsits use shared facilities: two bathrooms and a kitchen/ dining. 

With the shared facilities there is no possibility of self-isolating, if needed. The conversion of the 

outbuilding to residential accommodation was done at the beginning of the current year (Jan-Feb) but it 

has not been occupied. With the amenity of the garden, shared with other HMO renters living in the 

main house it would be a valuable addition to rented accommodation. 

 

The garden annexe, ancillary to the main house HMO, is designed for a max. 2 persons (either on 

person or a couple). 

 

The application seeks to increase the total number of occupants at 35 Taphouse Avenue to maximum 9 

people. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T4NEW Parking provision 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within a mature residential area of Witney. The application seeks 

retrospective consent for change of use from residential to an HMO. 

 

5.2 The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Town 

Council has raised objections. 

 

5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.4 The proposal is for the change of use of a residential dwelling to a house of multiple occupation.  As 

the number of residents will be more than six, planning permission is required for the development.  

The works are retrospective. 

 

Page 13



5.5 Your officers consider that in terms of Policy OS2 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan that 

the principle of the development is acceptable given the location of the development. Policy H6 of the 

adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan discusses Existing Housing and states; 

 

Alterations, extensions or sub-division of existing dwellings will respect the character of the surrounding area and 

will not unacceptably affect the environment of people living in or visiting that area. 

 

Policy OS4 also continues by stating that new development should not harm the use or enjoyment of 

land and buildings nearby including living conditions in residential properties. 

 

5.6 As the development is within a main service centre location, such development is acceptable subject 

to the proposals not adversely affecting neighbouring properties' residential amenities. 

 

5.7 Your officers consider that the change of use to the existing dwelling to HMO which provides four 

bed sits is acceptable.  The works to the existing dwelling house that have taken place are permitted 

development. 

 

5.8 The garden studio, now given its use, requires planning permission.   

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.9 The siting of the garden studio is located to the rear of the garden. The building provides 

accommodation for two people. The form of the building is single storey in scale. A pedestrian path 

leads to around the side of the main existing dwelling to provide separate access. 

 

5.10 In terms of amenity to serve all of the occupiers, there are areas of paved courtyard which your 

officers consider on balance acceptable. 

 

Highways 

 

5.11 After initial concerns regarding parking further information was sought from the applicant's agent, 

which has satisfied OCC Highways and they are no longer objected to the development. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.12 Given the single storey scale of the studio building, your officers do not consider that an adverse 

impact will result in terms of loss of privacy or overbearing issues.   

 

Conclusion 

 

5.13 Whilst the works are retrospective, your officers consider that the proposal will not adversely 

affect existing neighbouring properties residential amenities to such a degree to warrant refusal of the 

application.  Your officers shared the same concerns as the Town Council regarding parking issues.  

However given the further information, OCC Highways are not objecting to the proposal. 

 

5.14 In view of the above your officers consider that the retrospective works are compliant with Policies 

OS2, H6, OS4 and T4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

Page 14



 

 1  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 15



 
Application Number 21/02364/FUL 

Site Address Land (E) 432925 (N)209696 

Downs Road 

Curbridge 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Abby Fettes 

Officer Recommendations Provisional Approval 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 432926 E       209697 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Erection of 4 employment units (Class E (g iii), B2 and B8) with drainage, car parking and landscaping. 

(Amended plans) 

Page 16



 

Applicant Details: 

Carbide Properties and NFU Mutual Insurance Society Ltd 

C/o Agent 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

Comments on original plans: 

 

Highways 

The LHA has no objection of the above application from the 

transport perspective provided the Applicant addresses the above 

conditions and issues satisfactorily, should the Local Planning 

Authority be minded, to approve the above application. 

 

LLFA 

The discharge rate of 381 l/s is unacceptable for this development. 

According to our calculations, QBar for the development proposed at 

8043 ac (3.255 ha) is given as 8.59 l/s. We expect the discharge rate 

to be as close to this as possible. 

Where the reports state "Flow rate allowed for Phase 2 development 

= 54 l/s", there is no evidence submitted which shows the flow rate 

for Phase 2 has been limited to 54 l/s. 

In addition, we cannot accept flooding in any storm events except for 

1 in 100 yr + 40% CC. Now, the drainage system is flooding in the 

30-year storm. This must be rectified. 

Furthermore, calculations provided do not show the attenuation 

value required for storm even provided. 

 

ERS Air Quality  No Comment Received. 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites  I have looked at the application in relation to contaminated land and 

potential risk to human health.  

 

The proposed development site appears to have been used as an 

agricultural field over time. Please consider adding the following 

condition to any grant of permission.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 

out the approved development, it must be reported in writing 

immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements 

of Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of 

Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where remediation is necessary a 

remediation scheme must be prepared, to bring the site to a 

condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 

risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

Page 17



the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands I have No Objection in principle. 

 

Ecologist Original plans 

 

Compensation and enhancements 

The proposed scheme includes landscaping measures such as 

hedgerow planting and the creation of a flowering grass verge 

alongside the hedgerow. These measures are welcomed. However, I 

understand that a large area of dense scrub is present on site and 

therefore the removal of this habitat should be compensated for 

through the provision of additional biodiversity enhancements. For 

example, the scheme could potentially incorporate green roofs and/or 

additional wildlife meadow areas/verges (e.g. along the western, 

southern and eastern boundaries). Other biodiversity enhancements, 

such as the provision of bird boxes (including at least 3 no. swift 

bricks) and bat boxes integrated into or mounted onto the external 

walls as well as hedgehog highways within any new fences/walls, 

should be explored and incorporated into the scheme. 

 

Skylarks 

Skylarks were recorded on site during the Phase 1 Habitat Survey and 

it is possible that the species may breed on site. Currently, the 

ecology report does not mention whether any compensation for 

skylarks is proposed. It is also unclear whether a skylark 

compensation scheme was approved as part of application no. 

12/0084/P/OP (the relevant outline planning application). Please may 

this be clarified. 

 

Conservation Officer No Comment Received. 

 

Thames Water Waste Comments 

With the information provided, Thames Water has been unable to 

determine the waste water infrastructure needs of this application. 

Thames Water has contacted the developer in an attempt to obtain 

this information and agree a position for FOUL WATER drainage, but 

have been unable to do so in the time available and as such, Thames 

Water request that the following condition be added to any planning 

permission. "No development shall be occupied until confirmation has 

been provided that either:-  

 

1. Capacity exists off site to serve the development, or  

2. A development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed 

with the Local Authority in consultation with Thames Water. Where 

a development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed, no 

occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed 

development and infrastructure phasing plan, or  

Page 18



3. All wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the 

additional flows from the development have been completed. Reason 

- Network reinforcement works may be required to accommodate 

the proposed development. Any reinforcement works identified will 

be necessary in order to avoid sewage flooding and/or potential 

pollution incidents. 

 

The developer can request information to support the discharge of 

this condition by visiting the Thames Water website at 

thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. Should the Local Planning Authority 

consider the above recommendation inappropriate or are unable to 

include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local Planning 

Authority liaises with Thames Water Development Planning 

Department (telephone 0203 577 9998) prior to the planning 

application approval.  

 

With the information provided Thames Water has been unable to 

determine the waste water infrastructure needs of this application. 

Thames Water has contacted the developer in an attempt to obtain 

this information and agree a position for SURFACE WATER drainage, 

but have been unable to do so in the time available and as such 

Thames Water request that the following condition be added to any 

planning permission. "No development shall be occupied until 

confirmation has been provided that either: - 1. Capacity exists off 

site to serve the development or 2. A development and infrastructure 

phasing plan has been agreed with the Local Authority in consultation 

with Thames Water. Where a development and infrastructure phasing 

plan is agreed, no occupation shall take place other than in 

accordance with the agreed development and infrastructure phasing 

plan. Or 3. All wastewater network upgrades required to 

accommodate the additional flows from the development have been 

completed. Reason – Network reinforcement works may be required 

to accommodate the proposed development. Any reinforcement 

works identified will be necessary in order to avoid flooding and/or 

potential pollution incidents. The developer can request information 

to support the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames 

Water website at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. Should the Local 

Planning Authority consider the above recommendation inappropriate 

or are unable to include it in the decision notice, it is important that 

the Local Planning Authority liaises with Thames Water Development 

Planning Department (telephone 0203577 9998) prior to the planning 

application approval. 

 

Thames Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration 

flows during certain groundwater conditions. The scale of the 

proposed development doesn't materially affect the sewer network 

and as such we have no objection, however care needs to be taken 

when designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge and 

cause flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along with other 

partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater entering 

Page 19



the sewer networks. 

 

Thames Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration 

flows during certain groundwater conditions. The developer should 

liaise with the LLFA to agree an appropriate sustainable surface water 

strategy following the sequential approach before considering 

connection to the public sewer network. The scale of the proposed 

development doesn't materially affect the sewer network and as such 

we have no objection, however care needs to be taken when 

designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge and cause 

flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along with other 

partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater entering 

the sewer network. 

 

Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be 

fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the 

effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted 

discharges entering local watercourses. 

 

Water Comments 

Following initial investigations, Thames Water has identified an 

inability of the existing water network infrastructure to accommodate 

the needs of this development proposal. Thames Water have 

contacted the developer in an attempt to agree a position on water 

networks but have been unable to do so in the time available and as 

such Thames Water request that the following condition be added to 

any planning permission. No development shall be occupied until 

confirmation has been provided that either:- all water network 

upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows to serve the 

development have been completed; or - a development and 

infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to 

allow development to be occupied. Where a development and 

infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place 

other than in accordance with the agreed development and 

infrastructure phasing plan. Reason - The development may lead to no 

/ low water pressure and network reinforcement works are 

anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made 

available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the 

new development" The developer can request information to support 

the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames Water website 

at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. Should the Local Planning authority 

consider the above recommendation inappropriate or are unable to 

include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local Planning 

Authority liaises with Thames Water Development Planning 

Department (telephone 0203 577 9998) prior to the planning 

application approval. 

 

Adjacent Parish Council  No Comment Received. 

 

Parish / Town Council Original plans 

Page 20



 

Witney Town Council object to this application. 

In terms of scale, use and visual impact, this new proposal bears no 

resemblance to the scheme as was approved in the outline planning 

permission. The harmful impact of the new scheme is completely 

unacceptable for our residents, in particular residents of the new 

development.  The drawings show a complete absence of a buffer 

between the employment zone and the nearest residential properties. 

Policy OS2 states that all development should "Be compatible with 

adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact of the amenity of 

existing occupants". This proposal puts residential properties in close 

proximity to industrial scale buildings with use allowed for Industrial 

Processes (Use Class E(g)(iii)), General Industrial (Use Class B2) and 

Storage or distribution (Use Class B8). This is not compatible with 

adjoining residential use and therefore not compliant with Policy OS2. 

There are no office style buildings within this scheme. 

 

It is accepted that this area of the site was intended as an employment 

area for B1 use, but not for the proposed use classes or in this built 

form. The approved Land Use Parameter Plan, Revision P shows a 

'Buffer area' whereby the employment land nearest to residential 

properties was marked for B1 use only. (B1 use class now superseded 

by E(g)(i), E(g)(ii) and E(g)(iii), Uses which can be carried out in a 

residential area without detriment to its amenity). The approved Land 

Use Parameter Plan does not allow for B2 and B8 uses within the 

specifically marked out buffer zone. Further, Policy EH8 states that 

"New development should not take place in areas where it would 

cause unacceptable nuisance to the occupants of nearby land and 

buildings from noise or disturbance". 

 

Members object to this proposal on the grounds that it would cause 

unacceptable levels of harm to nearby occupants. 

Members note there are reported factual inaccuracies in the 

Environmental Noise Report. There are concerns that the 

measurements recorded as distance to nearest residential properties 

are inaccurate, the housing is a lot closer to the employment site 

boundary than is being claimed. The noise monitoring was carried out 

over a weekend where weather conditions meant that the findings 

are not representative. Further the report recommends that barrier 

screening be considered, this recommendation does not appear to 

have been adopted. Proposed noise mitigation measures are not 

detailed in the application, Members ask that Planning Officers liaise 

with relevant Environmental Services Officers to ensure that the ENR 

is scrutinised and harmful noise impact for residents is given due 

consideration. 

 

Witney Town Council question the principle of development when 

Paragraph 6.17 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan identifies the need 

for land for employment, but quite clearly states "the bulk of demand 

is for smaller units of less than 3,000 square feet" and that the priority 

Page 21



will be towards the provision of smaller units. The smallest unit on 

this proposed development is seven times that 'smaller unit size' and 

the biggest unit over 20 times bigger. 

 

This application has highlighted that Condition 13 of the Outline 

Planning Permission 12/0084/P/OP has not been met. The condition 

requires that "Prior to the development of the dwellings located 

adjacent to or in the proximity of the proposed employment area, a 

scheme for protecting proposed dwellings (as per Parameter Plan 

Land use Fig 4.1 of the application) from any noise, odour or lighting 

nuisance at the boundary of any residential property shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority." This condition does not appear to have been met and this 

new application does not meet what is required from the Outline 

Permission. 

 

Committee Members note an unusually large number of objection 

comments submitted by members of the public, Witney Town 

Council hear these objections and acknowledge the impacts of this 

industrial scale scheme for the residents living near the proposed 

development. Members ask that Officers fully consider the visual, 

noise and light implications of this proposal and urge West 

Oxfordshire District Council to refuse this application. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Business Development 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

Parish / Town Council Witney TC requested an extension for comments until 15th 

December. 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Over 120 letters of objection have been received and they are summarised as follows: 

 

- does not adhere to the outline permission 

- meant to be a B1 buffer for small offices and landscaping 

- monstrous units bigger units than initially planned 

- supposed to be office blocks and not massive factory units 

- will be an eyesore 

- far too large to be next to housing 

- overbearing on community 

- existing units already cause light and noise pollution 

- disturbance from construction period 

- overshadowing neighbouring properties 

- overlooking neighbouring properties 

Page 22



- ruins outlook from residential properties 

- increase light pollution 

- affect the price of our house adversely 

- were not aware this was industrial when we bought house 

- affect local ecology 

- detrimental environmental impact 

- increase danger of flooding 

- traffic already bad 

- What carbon emissions will we be expecting? 

- question the demand for these size of units, phase 1 not let 

- other vacant properties of this size in Witney already 

- need working hours, noise regulations, industries which are appropriate for residential areas 

- break up the facade with a living wall 

 

2.2 22 comments have been made to date on amended plans (consultation period ends 10th December) 

 

- cars using area for joy riding and anti social behaviour 

- no separation of business park and estate so traffic coming through estate 

- plans changing and getting worse 

- Lorries breaking up Downs Road 

- Would rather this was allotments or open space for families 

- thought it would be low rise offices not industrial 

- no attempt to provide an appropriate transition between the residential development and the 

proposed employment site 

- proposals make no attempt to acknowledge the residential character of the area immediately to the 

south and east 

- The proposed materials are purely functional and pay no heed to prevailing local materials or design 

guide 

- poor-quality scheme designed without reference to its local context 

- not in accordance with NPPF or Local Plan 

 

2.3 Cllr Jane Doughty made the following comments: 

 

It is extremely important that we encourage businesses to invest in West Oxfordshire and Witney. 

However, I am concerned that the planning application submitted does not adhere to outline planning 

proposals. Original plans suggested that there would be several office buildings - these would have acted 

as a nice buffer between industry on the site and residential properties. 

 

However, these new plans are totally unacceptable and completely overbearing. Residents have 

purchased their homes knowing that this employment zone will exist, but these proposals really are not 

in keeping with the original plans. There is highly likely to be an increase in noise and light pollution, as 

well as the potential for very nasty odours too. Therefore, I must object to this application due to the 

negative effects this will have on my residents. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicants case can be read in full online but is summarised as follows: 

 

Page 23



This full planning application seeks consent for the development of four employment units providing a 

floor space of 14,306m2 with 1,392m2 of ancillary office area. All units are proposed for Class E(g)(iii) 

and B8 uses. 

 

The application site is identified for employment development by Policy E1: Land for Employment which 

states that employment sites are those which include predominately office-based, industrial or storage 

and distribution activities, or related sui-generis uses. 

 

Policy WIT6: Witney sub-area strategy states that the focus of new housing, supporting facilities and 

additional employment opportunities will be Witney. WIT6 goes on to state that proposals for 

development in the sub-area should be consistent with the strategy which includes the provision of 

further employment land (at least 10ha) on the western edge of Witney to provide sufficient space for 

business expansion, relocation and inward investment. 

 

The application site also has the benefit of an outline planning permission (12/0084/P/OP) as an 

employment site to deliver B1 development. 

 

This application is seeking permission for 5 employment units for uses E(g)(iii) and B8 - storage and 

distribution. Given its location within an area identified for employment development of B1, B2 and B8 

uses within the Local Plan the principle of development is acceptable in principle subject to other 

material considerations. 

 

The design and scale of the proposals are considered to be appropriate, reflecting the character and 

appearance of phase 1 and 2a of the employment area. The proposal is accompanied by robust technical 

reports which demonstrate that there are no adverse impacts arising from the development and any 

impacts are appropriately mitigated. 

 

In accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the proposed 

development is in accordance with the policies contained within the West Oxfordshire Local Plan and 

amounts to sustainable development in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) 

and should be approved without delay. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

E1NEW Land for employment 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Page 24



Background Information 

 

5.1 The application relates to the site scheduled for employment development as part of the West 

Witney development and that has already been built out in part. It seeks full planning consent (not 

Reserved Matters Consent) for four employment units with associated drainage, parking and 

landscaping. Whilst the site is part of the West Witney Development area and was allocated for 

employment use under outline permission 12/0084/P/OP the fact that this is a full application and not a 

reserved matters unlike the previous phases means it needs to be assessed on its own individual merits 

and is not bound by the conditions or limitations of the outline consent - albeit they will be of relevance 

in terms of what was previously considered acceptable. During the course of the processing of the 

application amended plans have been negotiated, received and reconsulted on, and the extended 

consultation period expires on 10th December. 

 

5.2 The application is before committee at the request of local members.  

 

5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

- principle of development 

- layout, scale and massing 

- residential amenity 

- highways 

- drainage 

- ecology 

 

Principle 

 

5.4 The principle of development is considered to be acceptable as this site was approved an 

employment area under permission 12/0084/P/OP. That permission set the parameters for the land use 

and building heights in this area. As approved this was to be B1 use in this part of the site but the 

applicants have applied for uses that go beyond B1 use. It is also relevant to note that the parameter 

plans allowed under the outline consent allowed buildings up to 15m high whereas with this proposal 

the largest unit (12) is 12m high. It is clear that the impacts of what is now proposed are different, with 

some elements conforming to the outline better than before and others not conforming and potentially 

worse. That is why this scheme has been tabled as a full application and is why the details of what is now 

before us need to be looked at in the round as opposed to merely looking at what was originally 

conditioned/agreed.  

 

5.5 In that regard your officers assessment is that the principle of some form of employment 

development is clearly established by the allocation and the outline but the details need to be assessed 

carefully to determine whether this alternative to what was originally envisaged is acceptable on its own 

merits. The key factors that are relevant in making that assessment are set out under the following 

headings of this report. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.6 Officers initially had concerns regarding the proposed site layout and its impact on the residential 

area that is already occupied adjacent to the site. The general form of the buildings was considered neat 

and attractive and to fit in very well with the existing commercial units that have already been built and 

occupied in Phase 1. However the transition to the smaller scale residential properties was considered 

Page 25



problematic and considerable negotiation has been undertaken to seek to get to a position where the 

impacts are acceptable. 

 

5.7 Usually when an industrial scheme is located alongside residential units it is preferable to back them 

on to the units such that the activity in the service yards is screened away from the residences and the 

buildings act as a noise buffer. Even though the units proposed were smaller than the height parameters 

agreed in the outline, they were considered to be unneighbourly in such proximity. Following much 

negotiation officers have secured amendments whereby the units are located gable end on to the 

neighbours to reduce their massing impact. They have been moved further away (18m to the boundary 

with the rear gardens and 28m to rear elevation of closest properties to units 10&11) so that they now 

considerably exceed the distance that a house face to face relationship would be considered acceptable 

and space for additional planting is provided. These amendments. coupled with the fact that the units are 

considerably lower than those allowed under the outline consent and of a more 2 1/2 storey scale that 3 

or 4 storey scale means that officers are satisfied that the relationship is such that a refusal based upon 

the physical proximity to the neighbours is not sustainable. The reorientation does however open up 

the potential for increased disturbance from the activity and this is addressed in the next section of the 

report. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.8 The site is bounded by residential properties to the south. In creating the 

building/gap/building/gap/building relationship that has secured the acceptable buildings to neighbours 

relationship, the gaps potentially enable a greater transfer of noise to neighbours. This is compounded in 

that the proposals seek to widen out the nature of activity that can take place away from B1 

"neighbourly" uses to more general commercial activity. In assessing the impact it will be noted that the 

advice of Environmental Health is that they have no objections on noise grounds.  

 

5.9 Notwithstanding this position Officers have secured amendments that ensure that it is the parking 

rather than servicing areas that are closest to neighbours and that acoustic barriers will be provided 

within the site to seek to limit any residual impacts of servicing activity even further. Given the generally 

industrial nature of the remainder of the wider employment area, the lack of objection from EHO, the 

distance, the intervening car parking and the provision of acoustic barriers your officers have been 

satisfied that the impacts upon neighbours (who would have purchased in full knowledge of the fact that 

there were existing and proposed employment sites in the vicinity) is not such that it justifies refusal.  

 

Highways 

 

5.10 Members will note that there is No objection to the original plans and whilst comments are 

awaited on the amended plans it is not envisaged that these will be insurmountable. A verbal update will 

be given at the meeting. 

 

Other matters 

 

5.11 Members will note that there are comments outstanding as regards the ecology (lighting), drainage 

details (both foul and surface water and discharge rates) and contamination/remediation. However it is 

considered that all of these matters can be addressed by the imposition of a suitable condition to 

address the outstanding matter. In that the site was originally bound by the S 106 agreement that tied 

the wider area there will need to be a separate side agreement to address contributions as this is a full 

as opposed to reserved matters consent. Contributions have been requested by the County Council for 

Highway works. 

Page 26



 

Conclusion 

 

5.12 This is a contentious application. It is different to what was originally envisaged in some respects, 

but that of itself does not make it unacceptable. It needs to be assessed on its own merits and having 

done that, and secured amendments to address differences that arose from the particular characteristics 

of this scheme, your Officers have concluded that it is acceptable on its merits for the reasons identified 

above.  

 

5.13 It will however be noted that at the point of assessment on the committee date there will still be a 

small portion of the re consultation period outstanding. Officers request that the decision is delegated 

to officers to approve subject to no further technical objections being raised in that outstanding period 

and to conditions and the prior completion of a section 106 agreement to secure the requisite 

contributions towards infrastructure. 

 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  Conditions to include (but not restricted to): 

- Time limit 

- Approved plans 

- Highway safety 

- Ecology (including Lighting) 

- Drainage (TW  and LLFA ) 

- materials 

- details of acoustic fences 

- use as approved 

- provision of landscape buffers 

- etc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Abby Fettes 

Telephone Number: 01993 861684 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 27



 
Application Number 21/02577/FUL 

Site Address 35 Shillbrook Avenue 

Carterton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 1EQ 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Kelly Murray 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Carterton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 427645 E       208226 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Change of use of land to allow a mixed use of domestic garden and renovating of boat in the front 

garden. (Retrospective). 

 

 

Page 28



Applicant Details: 

Mr Marcin Czarny 

35 Shillbrook Avenue 

Carterton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 1EQ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish  / Town Council  Town Council objects due to "negative impact on neighbours". 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 There have been no representations made. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicant states that renovating the boat in the front garden "is taking a lot longer than 

expected". 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This is a retrospective application for a material change of use of land within a residential planning 

unit to a mixed use as residential and for the purpose of hobby restoration of a sailing boat. The 

application arises from an internal complaint made in 2018.   

 

5.2 35 Shillbrook Avenue is a bungalow located on the corner of Shillbrook Avenue and Stoneleigh 

Drive.  Its amenity space is located forward of the front elevation and to the side of the property and is 

clearly visible from the public realm. A large sailing boat is positioned directly in front of the dwelling, 

close to the boundary fence adjacent to the public highway. The boat is supported on a scaffold of metal 

poles which raise it to the height of the roof of the bungalow.  The boat itself is extremely prominent in 

the street scene. The scaffolding appears to be fairly easily dismantleable and the boat itself comprises 

one piece and so would presumably be relatively straightforward to move from the site by means of a 

trailer or other large vehicle. In Officers' view, for this reason the scaffold and boat would seem unlikely 

to satisfy the legal tests of size, permanence and attachment so as to qualify as building operations for 

the purposes of section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

5.3 The applicant states that the boat has been in place since 2019, however, given the complaint 

originated in 2018 it is likely it has been there for longer. The applicant has stated that restoration work 

on the boat is an ongoing project and has taken much longer than expected. 

 

5.4 In this case, the application is being considered as a material change of use due to the unusual nature 

of the project being carried on within the curtilage of a dwelling house, in particular the size and 

Page 29



prominence of the boat and the length of time it has been kept at the property in full visibility of the 

surrounding area.   

 

Principle 

 

5.5 Had this been a single motor vehicle being restored as personal project in a domestic driveway, it is 

likely that planning permission would not be required.  In this case, the main consideration is the impact 

on visual amenity from the size of the boat, which is prominently visible from the street scene in a 

densely populated residential area. The size of the boat and the way it is currently stored is such that 

this is analogous to a building operation because it is a structure that cannot be moved unless it (and the 

scaffolding on which it is supported) is either dismantled or placed on a trailer or lorry and transported 

away.  

  

5.6 Storing a sailing boat in a residential driveway has a material planning impact in part because of its 

size which in this case is more prominent than that of, say, a single motor vehicle hobby project.  

However, Officers note that the boat was reported by a Council employee and no neighbours or 

passers-by have raised a complaint either in relation to visual impact or noise from the works of 

restoration.  It is also noted that since 2020 the Covid-19 pandemic has affected people's lives 

considerably and normal routines, ability to travel and supplies of materials have been disrupted. Officers 

consider it would be inappropriate to allow a residential property to be used for restoration or storage 

of a boat indefinitely, however in this case, some flexibility might be allowed to enable the applicant to 

complete the project or move it to a more suitable location. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.7 Taking all these factors into account Officers consider that a temporary, one year permission would 

be appropriate to enable the works to be completed and/or to give the applicant time to find a more 

suitable long term home for the boat. The application is accordingly recommended for approval on this 

basis. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The use hereby permitted shall be carried on only by the applicant and shall be limited to the storage 

and restoration of the boat shown on the photographs filed with this application for a limited period of 

12 months from the date of this permission, or until the premises cease to be occupied by the applicant, 

whichever is the sooner. 

 

REASON: The use is only justified in the light of the special circumstances of the case. 

 

 2  When the premises cease to be occupied by the applicant or at the end of the period of 12 months 

from the date of this permission whichever shall first occur, the use hereby permitted shall cease and 

the boat, the scaffolding on which it is stored and all materials and equipment brought on to the 

premises in connection with the repair and maintenance of the boat and otherwise in connection with 

this temporary permitted use shall be removed. 

 

REASON: The use is only justified in the light of the special circumstances of the case. 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

 

Contact Officer: Kelly Murray 

Telephone Number: 01993 861674 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 31



 
Application Number 21/02593/FUL 

Site Address Windyridge 

Crawley Road 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 9TG 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Hailey Parish Council 

Grid Reference 434810 E       211293 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of new detached dwelling. 

 

 

Page 32



Applicant Details: 

Mr M Meagher 

Windyridge 

Crawley Road 

Witney 

Oxon 

OX29 9TG 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Hailey PC has no objection to this planning application. 

 

Ecologist I have now reviewed the Preliminary Roost Assessment Survey report (dated 20th 

October 2021 and prepared by Arbtech) as well as the Bat Emergence Survey 

report (dated 20th October 2021 and prepared by Arbtech). I have the following 

comments with recommendations for conditions and informatives. 

 

The main dwelling was considered to offer 'low' potential for roosting bats and a 

further activity survey was carried out. However, no bats were seen to emerge. 

Therefore, it is considered that there are currently no bats roosting within the 

building and there is no need to consider the 3 derogation tests as bats are 

unlikely to be impacted by the proposal. I recommend that the works are in 

accordance with the recommendations within Section 4 of the ecology reports. 

Bats were noted foraging around the buildings during the activity survey and 

therefore I recommend that biodiversity enhancements, including bat and bird 

boxes, are implemented to provide roosting and nesting opportunities for bats and 

birds using the wider area. The specific details, including designs and elevation 

plans, can be submitted to the LPA as a condition of planning consent. 

I also recommend that a sensitive lighting strategy is prepared to ensure that any 

new lighting does not illuminate surrounding vegetation. 

 

OCC Highways Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, hereby notify the 

District Planning Authority that they do not object to the granting of planning 

permission 

 

ERS Env. 

Consultation Sites 

No objection 

 

 

WODC Env 

Health – Lowlands 

 

Mr ERS Pollution Consultation No objection 

 

Newt Officer No Comment Received. 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No representations received 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

No case submitted 

Page 33



 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

H6NEW Existing housing 

EH2 Landscape character 

OS4NEW High quality design 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2021 

T4NEW Parking provision 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5 Background Information 

 

The application is to be heard before the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Parish Council 

has raised no objection to the scheme which is contrary to the proposed recommendation of refusal.  

 

The application seeks permission for demolition of existing bungalow and construction of new detached 

dwelling. 

 

The site is located within the open countryside between Witney and Crawley. The site is positioned in 

an elevated position within the landscape and is therefore visible within the wider landscape setting.  

 

The property currently on site is a one and half story dwelling constructed of render and red brick 

under a tile roof. The property has benefited from various extensions most recently 05/1011/P/FP which 

was for Alterations and extensions to dwelling including construction of new vehicular access. 

 

Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of interested 

parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

Siting, Design and Form Landscape Impact 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

Policy H6 specifically refers to replacement dwellings, stating that proposals to replace an existing 

permanent dwelling which is not of historical or architectural value will be permitted on a one-for-one 

basis, provided the character and appearance of the surrounding area is not eroded, there would be no 

harmful impact on ecology or protected species and the replacement dwelling is of a reasonable scale 

relative to the original building. 

 

As noted above the property has benefitted from various additions over the years and policy H6 is clear 

in that it states that the replacement dwelling should be of a reasonable scale relative to the original 

building. The proposed scheme shows a 2 storey dwelling with a hipped roof and 2 wing elements (one 

front and one rear).  The building will have a ridge height of 9.5m, a width of 14.85m (excluding the 

chimney) and will be 16m deep. Whilst no survey drawings have been supplied for the existing dwelling, 

officers can gauge from the historical mapping and following the site visit that the proposed scheme is 

significantly larger than the existing property and even more so compared to the original dwelling on 

site. The historical mapping which first shows the dwelling indicates the main core of the building being 

approx. 6m wide and 13m deep with an extension off to the north.  

 

Page 34



Whilst the principle of a replacement dwelling would be acceptable, the proposed development fails to 

comply with Policy in that the proposed scheme increases the dwelling significantly in both footprint, 

scale and volume which is not considered to be of a reasonable scale relative to the original building.  As 

such, the proposal conflicts with policy H6 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 (WOLP).  

 

Landscape Impact 

Paragraph 8.2 of the WOLP states: 

West Oxfordshire is a predominantly rural district which embraces large areas of relatively unspoilt 

countryside and a diverse pattern of landscapes, including rolling uplands, river valleys, historic parkland, 

remnants of ancient forests, low-lying farmland and riverside meadows. 

 

Policy EH2 states 'New development should conserve and, where possible, enhance the intrinsic 

character, quality and distinctive natural and man-made features of the local landscape, including 

individual or groups of features and their settings, such as stone walls, trees, hedges, woodlands, rivers, 

streams and ponds.'  

 

OS2 states 'Development in the small villages, hamlets and open countryside will be limited to that 

which requires and is appropriate for a rural location and which respects the intrinsic character of the 

area.' 

 

Policy OS4 seeks a high quality of design that respects, inter alia, the historic and architectural character 

of the locality, contributes to local distinctiveness and, where possible, enhances the character and 

quality of the surrounding.  The NPPF also makes it clear that creating high quality buildings and places is 

fundamental to what the planning and development process can achieve and the recently published 

National Design Guide provides advice on the components of good design which includes the context 

for buildings, form and scale, appearance, landscaping, materials and detailing.   

 

The surrounding built form is primarily clusters of farm buildings or traditional agricultural buildings 

which are commonly found throughout the district.  Given its open countryside location and elevated 

position of the site, officers are concerned that a much larger dwelling in this location would have a 

negative impact on the wider landscape setting. Whilst the existing dwelling is not traditional in form, it 

is fairly low lying and thus relatively unobtrusive.  The proposed development would be more visually 

prominent and would not be of a high quality design and would fail to conserve or enhance the intrinsic 

character and quality of the local landscape, contrary to policy EH2 of the WOLP.  

 

Other Matters 

Access and parking for the property remain unchanged. 

 

In regards to neighbouring amenity, given the separation distances and uses of the surrounding buildings 

officers are satisfied that it is acceptable in this regard. 

 

Following the submission of a Bat survey, the Biodiversity Officer raises no objection to the 

development.  

 

Conclusion 

The proposed 2 storey hipped roof dwelling will have a negative impact on the wider landscape and 

would not be reasonable in scale compared to the original dwelling.  The proposed development would 

therefore be contrary to policies H6, OS2, OS4 and EH2 of the adopted Local Plan 2031. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

Page 35



 

1  The proposed scheme by reason of its siting, design, massing and scale would fail to preserve or 

enhance the wider landscape character and would not be reasonable in scale compared to the original 

dwelling on site. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Policies H6, OS2, OS4 and EH2 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and advice in the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Hegerty 

Telephone Number: 01993 861713 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 36



 
Application Number 21/02628/FUL 

Site Address 1 St Marys Court 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX28 4AP 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Abby Fettes 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 435371 E       209329 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of existing two-storey housing facility and three bungalows. Erection of two-storey block of 

30 flats. 

 

 

Page 37



Applicant Details: 

Ms Marissa Yeoman 

Cottsway House 

Heynes Place 

Avenue 2.0 

OX28 4YG 

United Kingdom 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish / Town Council Witney Town Council does not object to this application and 

welcomes upgrades to the Cottsway housing stock for Witney 

residents. 

 

Members noted the concerns from the LLFA and Thames Water and 

ask that these are taken seriously. Witney is susceptible to flooding 

and all possible mitigation should be considered to ensure that the 

surface water drainage and sewage network are not compromised by 

this proposal. 

 

Pedestrian safety is a concern both during works and after 

completion, members ask that where possible the development 

includes a provision for safe crossing via dropped kerbs and tactile 

paving and that any opportunities to improve the footpath safety in 

this area be explored. 

 

The site is surrounded by existing housing and Henry Box School. 

Members request that a comprehensive Construction Traffic 

Management Plan be required by condition, and that local residents, 

pedestrians and schoolchildren be protected as much as possible from 

noise, dust, emissions and vehicular movements during the 

construction. 

 

Finally, members note that comments have been made by residents 

with regard to site notices. Any opportunity for planners and 

developers to engage, inform and consult with neighbours is 

encouraged. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

Highways 

No objection subject to a revised parking layout 

 

LLFA 

Where infiltration has been proposed, we must see at least 3 tests 

per soak away location in order to conclude an accurate infiltration 

rate. The tests carried out must be in accordance with BRE365. 

The areas used in the calculations, add up to a total of 0.147ha. 

However, the total impermeable area as mentioned in the report is 

0.32ha. This must be clarified. 

Some exceedance routes are shown to be flowing away from the 

development boundary. All exceedance flows must be contained 

Page 38



within the development boundary. 

 

Conservation Officer As previously noted, this is a structure with a large and spreading 

footprint - although it is fairly low lying, and the elevations are all 

fairly tidy. 

 

WODC - Arts We have considered the scale and mix of housing in this application 

and should it be approved we will not be seeking S106 contributions 

towards public art at this site. 

 

Natural England No comments to make. Refer to standing advice. 

 

Ecologist Thank you for consulting me on the above planning application 

(application no. 21/02628/FUL). I have reviewed the Ecological 

Impact Assessment (prepared by Ecology by design and dated June 

2021). I have the following comments where additional information is 

required before a positive determination of the application. 

 

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) 

In line with the NPPF Chapter 15 and Local Plan policy EH3, all major 

planning applications should demonstrate a measurable net gain in 

biodiversity. A guidance note and accompanying data standard 

requirements have been published on the council's website Planning 

application supporting information - West Oxfordshire District 

Council (westoxon.gov.uk). Currently, the information that has been 

submitted for the planning application is not in line with the above 

guidance and therefore the applicant should ensure that reference is 

made to this guidance note. 

 

I have identified the following areas relating to BNG where 

information is outstanding or will need to be further clarified: 

 

 The Ecological Impact Assessment states that biodiversity net 

gain calculations have been undertaken and that there will be 

a net gain of 37.86% in habitat units. This is satisfactory, 

however, the metric calculations spreadsheet will need to be 

submitted so that the calculations can be reviewed. 

 A Baseline Habitats Plan and the Proposed Habitats Plan have 

not yet been submitted and these are required so that I can 

assess the calculations against the corresponding plans. The 

two plans will need to use the UK habitat classification rather 

than Phase 1 classification so that it relates directly to the 

biodiversity metric and ensures that all documents directly 

correspond. 

 The areas (HA) of each habitat should also be labelled on the 

plans or included within the ecology report. 

 A detailed justification of how the Biodiversity Net Gain 

Good Practice Principles for Development (CIEEM, CIRIA, 

IEMA, 2016) and associated Practical Guide (2019) should be 

considered and applied. The Biodiversity Net Gain Strategy, 

Page 39



detailing this information, should be included as a separate 

chapter within the ecology report or submitted as a stand 

along document. 

 

In light of the above comments, I have further outlined the 

information that is required to be submitted for all major planning 

applications, in line with the council's guidance note: 

 

a) Habitat Baseline Plan. This can be produced using the 

information from the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal or 

Ecological Impact Assessment. It should clearly show the 

areas covered by each of the existing habitat types and the 

area in hectares of each habitat type (or for each habitat 

parcel, as some habitats may be scattered throughout the 

site). This can be submitted as an image file, GIS data (e.g. 

Esri.shp) or CAD (.dxf) file. 

b) Proposed Habitats Plan. This can be taken from the site 

layout plan, illustrative masterplan, green infrastructure plan 

or landscape plans (if they are available). The plan should 

clearly show what existing habitat types are being retained 

and enhanced, and what new habitat types will be created; it 

should be colour coded so that each habitat type is easily 

c) Identifiable and the area of each habitat type should be 

quantified in hectares. Other proposed biodiversity 

enhancements should also be shown on this plan. As above, 

this information can also be submitted as an image file, GIS 

data (e.g. Esri.shp) or CAD (.dxf) file. 

d) A full copy of the spreadsheet, detailing the Biodiversity 

Metric: The information in the metric should be directly 

related to the Habitat Baseline Plan and the Proposed 

Habitats Plan. The completed spreadsheet or the full 

calculations included in the metric should be submitted and 

not just a summary. Detailed justifications for the choice of 

habitat types, distinctiveness and condition should be added 

to the comments column or provided separately in a report. 

 

Nesting birds 

The ecology report notes that house sparrows were observed nesting 

within Building 4. Therefore, as this nesting site will be lost within the 

proposed development, compensation will need to be provided. The 

compensatory nesting provision will need to be shown on site plans 

upfront before a positive determination of the application. The 

architectural plans will need to show the nesting features on the 

elevations of the new building and also detail the specific designs. 

I will provide final comments for the application once the above 

informative has been submitted and further reviewed. 

 

Thames Water Waste Comments 

There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. If 

you're planning significant work near our sewers, it's important that 

Page 40



you minimize the risk of damage. We'll need to check that your 

development doesn't limit repair or maintenance activities, or inhibit 

the services we provide in any other way. The applicant is advised to 

read our guide working near or diverting our pipes. 
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planningyour-  
development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes. 

 

Thames Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration 

flows during certain groundwater conditions. 

The scale of the proposed development doesn't materially affect the 

sewer network and as such we have no objection, however care 

needs to be taken when designing new networks to ensure they don't 

surcharge and cause flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along 

with other partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater 

entering the sewer networks. Thames Water recognises this 

catchment is subject to high infiltration flows during certain 

groundwater conditions. 

 

The developer should liaise with the LLFA to agree an appropriate 

sustainable surface water strategy following the sequential approach 

before considering connection to the public sewer network. The scale 

of the proposed development doesn't materially affect the sewer 

network and as such we have no objection, however care needs to be 

taken when designing new networks to ensure they don't surcharge 

and cause flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along with 

other partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater 

entering the sewer network. 

 

With regard to SURFACE WATER drainage, Thames Water would 

advise that if the developer follows the sequential approach to the 

disposal of surface water we would have no objection. Management of 

surface water from new developments should follow Policy SI 13 

Sustainable drainage of the London Plan 2021. Where the developer 

proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames 

Water Developer Services will be required. Should you require 

further information please refer to our website. 
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-

for-services/Wastewater-services. 
 

Thames Water would advise that with regard to WASTE WATER 

NETWORK and SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS infrastructure 

capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 

application, based on the information provided. 

 

Water Comments 

There are water mains crossing or close to your development. 

Thames Water do NOT permit the building over or construction 

within 3m of water mains. If you're planning significant works near our 

mains (within 3m) we'll need to check that your development doesn't 

reduce capacity, limit repair or maintenance activities during and after 

construction, or inhibit the services we provide in any other way. The 

Page 41

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planningyour-
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-services/Wastewater-services


applicant is advised to read our guide working near or diverting our 

pipes. https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-

yourdevelopment/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes 
 

If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, 

it's important you let Thames Water know before you start using it, 

to avoid potential fines for improper usage. More information and 

how to apply can be found online at thameswater.co.uk/building 

water. 

On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise 

that with regard to water network and water treatment infrastructure 

capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning 

application. Thames Water recommends the following informative be 

attached to this planning permission. Thames Water will aim to 

provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 

bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves 

Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this 

minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

 

WODC Housing Enabler The proposed 100% affordable housing re-development will provide 

23 x 1 bed apartments and 7 x 2 bed apartments for rental. 

The applicant proposes a minimum age for allocation of the 

apartments. The apartments will be built over two storeys and there 

will be lift and stair access to the first floor. 

 

Currently there are 353 applicants registered on the Council's 

Homeseeker Plus system that have at least one family member aged 

55 or over, have a 1 or 2 bedroom need and that indicate a 

preference to rent a home in Witney.  Of these applicants, 96 have 

indicated a need for accommodation on ground floor or with lift 

access.  The homes provided by this re-development will make an 

important contribution to local housing need. 

 

WODC Planning Policy 

Manager 

The general principle for this application is solid as it is replacing 

dwellings which are not fit for purpose with ones which are. The 

siting is still suitable and the majority of this application is in line with 

our current policies. The surrounding buildings are a fairly 

mismatched patchwork of styles and ages, as such the proposed 

design is acceptable but there is scope for a less conventional building.  

It is important to consider environmental policies which may not have 

been relevant when the original building was constructed. The 

submitted ECIA outlines the plans for biodiversity and ecological gain 

and maintenance, if the points within are followed the application will 

satisfy policies EH3 and EH4. A suggestion would be to include 

provision for green travel (Bicycle parking/electric vehicle charging).  

The policies within the local plan support this application. 

 

WODC Landscape And 

Forestry Officer 

 No Comment Received. 

 

 

Page 42

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-yourdevelopment/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-yourdevelopment/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes


ERS Env. Consultation Sites While I have no major concerns relating to the proposed 

development there is an electricity substation on site. From the plans 

submitted with the application it appears that the substation will 

remain as it is and that the surrounding area will be used as a car 

park.  Would it be possible to check with the applicant that this is the 

case?  

 

Assuming the above is confirmed would it be possible to add the 

following condition to any grant of permission as a precaution.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 

out the approved development, it must be reported in writing 

immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements 

of Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of 

Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where remediation is necessary a 

remediation scheme must be prepared, to bring the site to a 

condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 

risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

WODC Env Health - Lowlands  I have No Objection in principle. 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

 Revised comments awaited 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Thirteen letters of representation have been received and are summarised as follows: 

- height of proposal 

- visual amenity 

- loss of light to adjacent properties 

- loss of privacy to adjacent properties 

- overlooking from first floor windows 

- out of character with surrounds 

- inappropriate materials 

- impact of construction work on mental health/parking/traffic 

- parking shortage and traffic congestion 

- highway safety 

- narrow roads inaccessible to refuse trucks/emergency services 

- damaging effect on Conservation Area 

- impact on biodiversity 

- pollution from lighting 

- drainage issues from proposed materials 

 

Page 43



3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows: 

 

This application is for a high quality, attractive new, secure and sustainable block of flats for the elderly 

to replace an existing over 50 year old block of outdated residential units for the elderly. It will provide 

more, but also larger units meeting current standards and requirements. All of the units will benefit from 

some private amenity space as well as landscaped communal amenity. It also provides more and more 

suitable car parking, cycle storage and buggy storage. 

The scheme has developed through a lengthy and informative pre application consultation and a public 

consultation in partnership with the local authority officers and various specialist consultants. It is 

therefore respectful of the site context, the ecology of the site and area, existing trees and the local 

highway system. 

The proposed building is designed to respect the appearance of the surrounding area, in terms of 

building form and materials, in a striking contemporary design reflecting it is a new development for 

today. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H3NEW Affordable Housing 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application seeks full consent to demolish the existing sheltered housing scheme which is 26 

units, and replace it with a two storey block of 30 flats. The scheme is proposed as affordable housing 

for over 55's. 

 

5.2 The site sits within the Witney Conservation Area. The Grade II* listed Henry Box School is to the 

east and there are residential properties to the north, south and west. 

 

5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

Page 44



 

5.4 The proposal seeks to replace the existing sheltered housing scheme with a new residential scheme. 

 

5.5 The key policy considerations for the principle of this proposal are policies OS2 and H2.  

 

5.6 Policy OS2 states that a significant proportion of new homes will be focused within Witney, subject 

to the following criteria:  

 

- Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative impact of 

development in the locality; 

- Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the area; 

- Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants; 

- Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services and 

facilities; 

- Not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere; 

- Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; 

 

5.7 Policy H2 requires that new dwellings will be permitted in the main service centres  in the following 

instances: 

 

On previously developed land within or adjoining the built up area provided the loss of any existing use would not 

conflict with other plan policies and the proposal complies with the general principles set out in Policy OS2 and 

any other relevant policies in this plan;  

 

5.8 As the proposal is for two storey residential development to replace existing two storey residential 

development, albeit with an increase of 4 units, it is considered that those criteria can be met and that 

the principle of development in this location is therefore acceptable, subject to meeting all other policy 

requirements. 

 

5.9 The flats are proposed to be 100% affordable housing (replacing the existing scheme which is also 

affordable) which is supported by Policy H3. 

 

5.10 There are a mix of one and two bed flats which meets the requirements of Policy H4. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.11 The existing buildings are laid out in a large 'H' form, two storey in height with three bungalows at 

the southern end of the site. It is red brick with render panels and is of no particular architectural merit. 

 

5.12 The proposal is for a two storey building on a different floor plan, more of a 'C' shape, pushed 

further west on the site but retaining the parking area on the northern boundary, and not stretching as 

far south as the existing scheme. 

 

5.13 The building is considered to be appropriate in this location in terms of its scale, design and form. 

Whilst the design is more modern, the roofscape is similar to buildings in Henry Box grounds, 

bungalows and the terrace properties on the Springs and the Crofts, the scale is 2 storey, and the 

materials (recon stone, render and artificial slates) are considered to be appropriate. Officers have 

requested some minor amendments to the design which will be presented at the meeting. 

 

Page 45



5.14 Within a Conservation Area, officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with respect to 

buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 

preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  

 

5.15 It is considered that the proposed building, in terms of its scale and layout is in context with the 

surroundings, with the larger scale buildings of the school to the east and the domestic scale properties 

to the North, West and South. In that regard it is considered to preserve the character and appearance 

of the conservation area. 

 

Highways 

 

5.16 The proposal will utilise the existing access in the north eastern corner of the site. The proposal 

includes 25 parking spaces which is considered sufficient for the development proposed, (there are only 

12 spaces for the existing 26 units), and some of these will be provided as EV spaces. The County as 

Highway Authority have raised no objection subject to a revised parking layout being submitted and a 

number of conditions being imposed. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.17 There have been several concerns raised by local residents in regard to the impact on residential 

amenities from this proposal. 

 

5.18 The properties in the Springs (to the west) are over 37m away from the boundary with this site 

(nearly 40m to the proposed windows and balconies) and at that distance it is not considered that the 

proposal will be unduly harmful to their private amenities from the windows and balconies proposed on 

the western boundary. The proposal is the same distance away from the properties to the north in The 

Crofts as the current dwellings, and the proposed building would also be sited significantly further from 

the properties to the south. 

 

5.19 As stated above, Highways have not raised an objection with regard to the amount of parking 

proposed for the scheme so whilst officers are aware of parking issues within this part of town there 

will be an increase of spaces serving the development and there is no technical objections to the 

proposal. 

 

5.20 The objections also raise concerns regarding the construction period. Any disturbance caused by 

development sites is regulated under the Control of Pollution Act and does not fall within the remit of 

Planning, however a condition relating to construction traffic will be attached to the recommendation. 

 

Drainage 

 

5.21 Thames Water and OCC as LLFA have been consulted on this application. Thames Water have not 

raised any objection subject to the LLFA being satisfied with the surface water drainage scheme. The 

LLFA have raised a technical objection to the scheme and are seeking some clarification from the 

application. Further information has been submitted and the County have been reconsulted. The officer 

recommendation is subject to those matters being resolved. 

 

Ecology 

 

Page 46



5.22 The biodiversity officer raised a number of matters which the applicant has sought to address 

through the submission of further information. Officers are awaiting the revised comments and 

members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.23 For the reasons set out above, officers are recommending approval of this scheme subject to 

amended plans being submitted to address the design concerns, the resolution of the drainage and 

ecology matters, the conditions set out below and any additional conditions. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to be 

used in the elevations of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved materials. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

 4  The window and door frames shall be recessed a minimum distance of 75mm from the face of the 

building unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the building reflects the established character of the 

locality.   

 

 5  No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities for refuse bins to be stored awaiting 

collection have been provided in accordance with details first approved by the Local Planning Authority 

and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.  

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area and in the interests of the 

convenience and efficiency of waste storage and collection.  

 

 6  In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development, it 

must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of Environment Agency's Model 

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11, and where remediation is necessary a 

remediation scheme must be prepared, to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 

removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is subject to the 

approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity. 

Page 47



Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

 7  Development shall not begin until a construction phase traffic management plan has been submitted 

and approved by the Local Planning Authority and the approved plan shall be implemented and adhered 

to throughout the period of construction.  

 

REASON: In the interests of Highway safety. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

 0. There are water mains crossing or close to your development. Thames Water do NOT permit 

the building over or construction within 3m of water mains. If you're planning significant works near our 

mains (within 3m) we'll need to check that your development doesn't reduce capacity, limit repair or 

maintenance activities during and after construction, or inhibit the services we provide in any other way. 

The applicant is advised to read our guide working near or diverting our pipes. 

https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-yourdevelopment/ 

Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes 

 

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and 

a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should 

take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

 

0. Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

o Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

o Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

o High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

o Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

o Water recycling measures 

o Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 There are water mains crossing or close to your development. Thames Water do NOT permit 

the building over or construction within 3m of water mains. If you're planning significant works 

near our mains (within 3m) we'll need to check that your development doesn't reduce capacity, 

limit repair or maintenance activities during and after construction, or inhibit the services we 

provide in any other way. The applicant is advised to read our guide working near or diverting 

our pipes. https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-

yourdevelopment/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes 

 

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 

Page 48



bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The 

developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed 

development. 

 

 2 Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

 

Contact Officer: Abby Fettes 

Telephone Number: 01993 861684 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 49



 
Application Number 21/02805/FUL 

Site Address 48 Sherbourne Road 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX28 5FH 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Witney Parish Council 

Grid Reference 433773 E       209732 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Change of use of land to enlarge domestic garden and reposition 1.8m high close-boarded boundary 

fence. 

 

 

Page 50



Applicant Details: 

Mr Mark Davies 

48 Sherbourne Road 

Witney 

Oxon 

OX28 5FH 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish / Town Council Witney Town Council object to this application. The character of this estate is 

identified by these parcels of amenity space and fencing them away from view is 

harmful to that character and takes this amenity from the rest of the 

community. This proposal is not compliant with Policy OS2 in that it would 

involve the loss of an area of open space that makes an important contribution 

to the character or appearance of the area. 

 

Further, members discussed the contribution to bio-diversity as is provided by 

these small parcels of land, this small but important benefit could be lost if the 

space was incorporated to privately-owned domestic garden. 

 

OCC Highways  No objection 

 

WODC Legal And 

Estates 

 

 No Comment Received. 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Three comments have been received.  They have been summarised as; 

 

As the green spaces on Deer Park are vital for the local wildlife, considering all the building development 

in the area, it would be a great shame to lose another patch. 

On reading the application it is clear that the applicant does not own the land and it is not shown on 

their Deeds or within the curtilage of the property. They are in fact just trying to enlarge their back 

garden for their own use which is quite understandable, however the Council has to be consistent and 

seen to be fair even though considering each application on their own merit. This land forms part of the 

open green space and I didn't believe people were allowed to erect anything on amenity land. 

I would refer you therefore to application number 18/03550/FUL which was refused even though the 

land belonged to the property on Deer Park (mine). 

In principle I support this application to utilise this land for the purposes specifically of enlarging the 

applicants domestic garden.  I do however have two comments to make about the covering letter for 

the application made by Mike Gilbert. I think it is a slight embellishment to suggest that this land is 

effectively a "dog toilet" and additionally there were plantings in the area but they were removed a 

couple of years ago. That said it is very true to say that the land is now rather scruffy and unkempt and 

would be much better served within the boundary of a well maintained property.   

My only concern is that this application is not utilised in the future by other local properties as a 

precedent for future applications. I think that this application should be seen as unique, in that the land 

would be much better served, in this specific case, within the boundary of a property where it will be 

looked after and maintained. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

Page 51



 

3.1 A covering letter has been submitted with the application.  It has been summarised as; 

 

The application site is a small scruffy piece of land which is currently used as a dog toilet. It lies beside a 

public footpath / cycleway and a large area of public open space. The site measures only 3.5m deep by 

25m wide and is too small to be used for any beneficial purpose. It includes no planting to complement / 

landscape the footpath / cycleway, only overgrown weeds in front of the existing fencing. The proposal 

will tidy up this section of the footpath / cycle route and, given the expanse of public open space 

opposite the application site, it will not result in any oppressive or enclosed feeling for pedestrians and 

cyclists.  

 

The proposal will remove the existing use of this piece of land as a dog toilet and put it to good use for 

the applicant without harming the character of the area or the setting of the adjoining footpath / 

cycleway. It is hoped, therefore, that planning permission will be granted. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH2 Landscape character 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application site is located within a mature residential area of Witney.  The site area is 87.50 

square metres. 

 

5.2 The application is to be heard before the Committee as the Town Council has raised objections. 

 

5.3 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.4 The proposal is for the change of use of amenity land to residential and to form part of the 

applicant's domestic curtilage. The area of land is adjacent to a footpath alongside existing residential 

development.  Your officers consider that the proposal complies with Policy OS2 and its general 

principles. The most relevant general principle is considered to be that proposed development should 

not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important contribution 

to the character or appearance of the area. The area of open space is located adjacent to a footpath, as 

such your officers consider that as the area of land is not significantly visible within the general public 

domain, that the existing area of land does not make an important contribution to the character or 

appearance of the area. 

 

5.5 The application which is cited within the representations section of the report, planning application 

reference 18/03550/FUL, has been referred to by your officers.  However given that area of land was 

significantly visible within the public domain, adjacent to the main roads within this development, your 

officers consider that the site positioning is different to the proposed. 

Page 52



 

5.6 Your officers consider that given different boundary treatments within the vicinity of the current 

application site, that the proposed enclosure will not be so detrimental to warrant refusal of the 

application. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.7 A proposed 1.8m close boarded fence is proposed to enclose the area of land.  Your officers have 

suggested a condition, requesting that the proposed colour to be used for the fence is submitted, and 

that hedgehog gaps are included. 

 

Highways 

 

5.8 OCC Highway has no objections to the proposal, it does not affect the adjacent public right of way. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.9 Because of the location of the piece of ground to be incorporated into the domestic curtilage, your 

officers do not consider that residential amenities of neighbouring dwellings will be adversely affected by 

the proposal.   

 

Conclusion 

 

In view of the above, given the location of the existing parcel of land and its modest scale, officers 

consider that the wider impact of the locality will not be adversely affected by the proposed 

development. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of doubt 

as to what is permitted.  

 

 4  Prior to the enclosure of the land, details of the colour for the 1.8m fence shall be first submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The boundary treatment shall include provision 

for hedgehog highways, and shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and retained 

thereafter. 

   

Page 53



REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area, and improve opportunities for 

biodiversity.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 54



 
Application Number 21/02906/S73 

Site Address Fish Hill Farm 

Wilcote Road 

North Leigh 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 6WT 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Miranda Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish North Leigh Parish Council 

Grid Reference 438826 E       214103 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Removal of condition 1 of permission 10/0425/P/FP to allow the use of the barn for rearing livestock and 

storage of feeds, bedding and equipment associated with the agricultural or horticultural use of the land 

Page 55



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr Stuart James 

Fish Hill Farm 

Wilcote Road 

North Leigh 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 6WT 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council The Parish council objects to this application because of the deleterious impact it will 

have on the residential amenity of the nearby cottage, which is less than 150 metres 

from the site. 

Permission 1 of 10/0245/P/FP clearly specified the restrictive use of the building to 

storage of hay, straw, feed and [a] tractor associated with the agricultural and 

horticultural use of the land. This obviously excludes the use of the barns for 

livestock, the reason for the decision being the impact on the residential amenity of 

the cottage from nuisance noises and odours from farm livestock.. 

There is no justification in removing this condition, indeed we understand that the 

applicant has contravened the condition on a number of occasions and it should be 

now reinforced. 

 

WODC Env 

Health – 

Lowlands 

 

 I have no adverse comments to make. 

 

OCC Highways  No Comment Received. 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 An objection has been received, and summarised as; 

 

Mr and Mrs Young purchased Wisteria Cottage in 2004. At the time of the purchase until 2019 Fish Hill 

Farm was owned by Oliver Barnicote and used exclusively as a livery yard and as a base for an 

entertainments business (storage of lighting and audio equipment). The livery business was contracted 

out to a third party and Mr Barnicote continues to operate the entertainment business from the site. 

Our clients have lived next door to Fish Hill Farm without complaint or concern throughout this period. 

In fact, their daughter's horse was stabled at the livery between 2006 and 2008. 

 

At some point after 2018 the livery contract was changed and awarded to Stuart James, the current 

business partner and applicant of this application. Mr James initially continued to operate the livery yard 

on the same basis until 2019 when a few goats were introduced to the site. He also operates 'Rapid 

Leasing' from the site. 

 

What was initially a few, free-range billy goats on site for fattening up ready for slaughter and sale of the 

meat, has now intensified to such a level that both the original barn complex and the hay storage 

building (the subject of this application) are now being used. The livery yard business has ceased and 

there are approximately 200 plus indoor reared goats. 

Page 56



This current application before the LPA seeks to vary condition 1 of the 2010 approval, which states: 

'Only hay, straw, feed and tractor associated with the agricultural or horticulture use of the land (as 

stated in section 3 of the application for planning permission) shall be stored in the approved building. 

Reason: The building is only suitable for the storage specified because of the special circumstances of the 

site. Policy BE2, NE1 and NE3 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011)' 

 

The applicant in section 5 of the planning form for the current undecided application before the Local 

Planning Authority (LPA) has suggested the following alternative wording: 

 

'The building shall only be used for the rearing of livestock and storage of feeds, bedding and equipment 

associated with the agricultural or horticultural use of the land.' The original condition refers to 

'horticulture' (sic) and the proposed amendment specifies 'horticulture'. Clarification should be sought as 

to whether a new, further use is being proposed on site or if this is a 'typo'. As it stands, it is our clients' 

contention that an application for change of use should be applied for and not a variation of a condition 

application. The rearing of livestock on the site and the use of the building for intensive livestock rearing 

is fundamentally different to the uses on the site at the time of the 2004 and 2010 

applications, and when the original purpose of the building was considered and approved. 

The LPA's deliberation of the use of the storage barn for the keeping of livestock must be considered in 

light of the cessation of the livery yard business and the other business uses on site 

The applicant's agent in the supporting statement states that goats, sheep, pigs and chickens are raised 

on the site. It is also stated that the building the subject of this application is ideal as a holding building 

for the kids and lambs before they reach a suitable age to be turned out to the paddocks. It is 

understood that un-castrated billy goats, which are generally rather smelly, occupy the storage building 

and rarely leave the building. 

My clients are unsure when the barn complex to the north was constructed and if planning conditions 

were applied restricting its use. It is now being used for agricultural livestock rather than equestrian use 

- probably not the equestrian use it was permitted for. 

 

The application is not supported by a business or management plan for the farm  

Our clients consider that an application to vary the condition cannot be looked at in isolation and must 

be considered as part of the running and operation of the whole site, including the non-agricultural and 

non-equestrian uses. 

The building is approximately 150 metres from the Wisteria Cottage, with the residential garden less 

than this. 

Because it is recognised by Government that the introduction of livestock buildings in close proximately 

to residential properties may result in an adverse impact on the amenities of the occupiers, permitted 

development rights for agricultural buildings is conditional upon them being more than 400 metres away 

if to be used for livestock. Otherwise full planning permission is required to fully assess the impact. 

Since November 2020, when the goat rearing activity on site intensified, Mr and Mrs Young have 

suffered from overpowering and nuisance odours on many occasions within their home and garden. 

Sometimes persisting throughout the day. 

 

Our clients have kept a record of the times and dates of these incidences (31 in total at the time of 

writing this objection) together with additional notes on the prevailing weather conditions (Appendix 2). 

As you will see from this log overpowering smells from the site are a re-occurring problem and 

adversely impacts upon the residential amenity of Mr and Mrs Young. 

 

The Environmental Health Officer has commented on the application and raised no objection, but has an 

assessment of the possible pollutants and waste management been undertaken? 

Page 57



The existing belt of trees along the southern boundary between the application site and Mr and Mrs 

Young's garden does not offer adequate screening. The photographs at Appendix 3 clearly show how 

this belt of trees does not provide an adequate landscape buffer.  Outdoor storage occurs between the 

storage building and the site boundary to the south east. This is unsightly and feed bags are regularly 

seen blowing around in tree belt and stream - posing a danger to wildlife. 

 

No details are given about employment at the site and if workers are required on site in addition to the 

Mr James and his family in order to run the livestock business. 

Policy EN8: Environmental Protection states that proposals which are likely to cause air pollution, will 

only be permitted if measures can be implemented to minimise pollution on amenity grounds. No such 

measures are proposed or in place. 

 

Mr and Mrs Young acknowledge that the countryside is a living and working environment and agriculture 

is an important and necessary element of this. However, the impact of any development upon their 

residential amenity is also a material consideration. Our clients consider there is still a considerable 

amount of information required and unanswered questions before this application should be decided. 

Until the full extent of the proposal is known, including the number of animals and type of livestock, this 

application cannot be fully assessed by the LPA. 

The planning authority is respectfully asked to refuse this planning application on lack of information and 

the detrimental impact upon the residential amenities of the occupants of Wisteria Cottage. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted as part of the application.  It has been 

summarised as; 

 

3.1.1 Mr Barnicoat owns the property and used to run the site as a livery yard, Mr James lived off site 

and travelled each day to work there. In the last few years, Mr Barnicoat no longer had an interest in 

running the livery yard but came to an agreement with Mr James that he could take on the site and buy 

it in time. Mr James, therefore, continued to run the livery yard but also started to enhance the site so 

he and his family could eventually move in and work the property as a proper smallholding. 

The property is now occupied by Mr James, his wife and his six children who are developing and 

enhancing the site as a working smallholding. 

 

3.1.2 The site is now being developed and run as a smallholding where Mr James and his family are 

raising goats, sheep, pigs, and chickens. The building in question is ideal as a holding building for the kids 

and lambs before they are big enough to be turned out into the paddocks. 

The use of the building for this purpose has no relevance or impact on Policies BE2, NE1 and NE3 of the 

adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011, I would argue that what Mr James is doing with Fish Hill 

Farm is enhancing the countryside. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

EH8 Environmental protection 

OS4NEW High quality design 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Page 58



5 Background Information 

 

The application site is located within an open countryside location and is part of a large plot.  The 

nearest neighbouring property is Wisteria Cottage.   

 

The planning history of the application site includes; 

04/0407/P/FP Alterations and extensions to main dwelling and other ancillary works including raising 

height of wall, alterations and extension to detached garage to provide carers bedsit, and erection of 

covered manege horse walker and hay store, outdoor manege, lunging ring with new road and parking. 

Approved 

 

10/0425/P/FP Erection of detached storage building, (retrospective). Approved  

As part of the 2010 planning application, a condition was included to state; 

 

Only hay, straw, feed and tractor associated with the agricultural or horticulture use of the land (as 

stated in section 3 of the application for planning permission) shall be stored in the approved building. 

Reason: The building is only suitable for the storage specified because of the special circumstances of the 

site. Policy BE2, NE1 and NE3 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011) 

 

This proposal seeks planning consent to vary the wording of this condition with;  

The building shall only be used for the rearing of livestock and storage of feeds, bedding and equipment 

associated with the agricultural or horticultural use of the land. 

 

As noted within the objection received, your officers consider that the horticultural use as stated within 

the application form, is an error, given that it is used within the original condition and proposed re-

wording of the condition on the application form.  The supporting document states that the use of the 

building is for livestock and not horticultural use.  However your officers are confirming this with the 

applicant to ensure that this is the case. 

 

Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of interested 

parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

Given the established use of the site and that the building already exists and is in use, your officers 

consider that the principle of such a use in this location is acceptable. 

 

The general development principle of Policy OS2 includes that development should not adversely affect 

residential amenities of existing properties, and Policy EH8 Environmental protection states that 

proposals which are likely to cause pollution or result in exposure to sources of pollution or risk to 

safety, will only be permitted if measures can be implemented to minimise pollution and risk to a level 

that provides a high standard of protection for health, environmental quality and amenity. 

 

This issue is assessed later in the report. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

Given that this is an existing building, officers do not consider that these issues are relevant to this 

application. 

 

Page 59



Highways 

 

Your officers are still awaiting a formal response.  Members will be verbally updated by officers at the 

meeting. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

Your Environmental Health officer has been consulted with regards to this application and the use.  

They have no objections to this use.  As such whilst your officers sympathise with the neighbouring 

property, given that there is no objection from a technical consultee, your officers do not consider that 

refusal is justified in this situation. 

 

Conclusion 

 

Given that the location of the existing building is set away from the neighbouring property, and that 

your Environmental officer has raised no objections, your officers consider that the proposed use is 

acceptable and compliant with the relevant policies of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan. 

Confirmation to the wording of the revised condition and any response from OCC Highways will be 

verbally reported at the meeting. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  The building shall be used for the purposes as set out within the application and for no other use. 

 

REASON: To protect existing residential amenities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Miranda Clark 

Telephone Number: 01993 861660 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 60



 
Application Number 21/03027/FUL 

Site Address Old Farmhouse 

Burford Road 

Black Bourton 

Bampton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 2PF 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Esther Hill 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Black Bourton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 428727 E       204557 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Formation of a vehicular access to serve the holiday cottages 

 

Page 61



Applicant Details: 

Mr Neil Wiffen 

Old Farmhouse 

Burford Road 

Black Bourton 

Bampton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 2PF 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

OCC Highways Given the low speeds and traffic flows in the adjacent area I cannot 

demonstrate the proposal, if permitted, would cause such harm as to 

warrant the refusal of the application for reasons of highway safety 

and convenience. 

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the adjacent 

highway network 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to conditions. 

 

Parish Council Objects to the Planning Application. 

Comment Reasons: 

 Affect local ecology 

 Design and layout 

 Highways 

 Neighbourliness 

 

Comment: As a Parish Council we have been presented with a list of 

objections from our Parish Council committee.  As the Parish Clerk 

please can it be noted. The access could cause: 

 

 Water Supply issues 

 Increased traffic problems both during and after construction. 

 The ancient dry stone wall being removed/reduced and 

tampered with. 

 Damage to grass verges by vehicles. 

 Damage to underground water pipes. 

 

Conservation Officer We would lose a small section of what appears to be a relatively 

modern stone wall, and some coniferous hedging. 

 

There are no great objections from our point of view. 

 

Ecologist  I recommend that the conifer hedge is removed outside of the 

nesting bird season and this can be included within a suitable condition 

and informative (see below). 

Page 62



There are a number of ponds to the south-west of the site and so if 

great crested newts are present in these, the species could potentially 

use the stone wall as shelter. I would therefore recommend that 

Precautionary measures are carried out including the removal of the 

stones carefully by hand. 

 

I have copied in Connie (Newt Officer) so that she can comment 

further on whether she thinks a PWMS would be sufficient for GCN. 

Connie would you agree that precautionary working (outlined below) 

is ok for this? 

 

Possible conditions and informatives include: 

a. The works shall be completed in strict accordance with the 

measures outlined within the Forest Of Dean District Council's 

Precautionary Working Method Statement guidance note dated 16th 

May 2012 available at: 

https://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/wjth1ruj/precautionary-method-

ofworking-for-reptiles.pdf. Precautionary measures shall also include 

the removal of the hedge outside of the nesting bird season. If the 

removal of the hedge is required between March to August, the works 

shall not commence until a careful check for nesting birds has been 

Completed. If bird nests are found then works must stop until the 

chicks have fledged. All the recommendations and measures shall be 

implemented in full according to the specified timescales, unless 

otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

REASON: To ensure that species and habitats are protected in 

accordance with The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 as amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 

179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 15), 

Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for 

the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and 

Rural Communities Act 2006.  

 

Informatives 

Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 

protection afforded to species protected under the terms of the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), 

or any other relevant legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 

and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and 

feeding chicks), their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) 

are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 

2000. Works that will impact upon active birds' nests should be 

undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure their protection, 

i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, 

or only after the chicks have fledged from the nest. 

 

Page 63



In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected 

species, or if evidence of protected species is found during works, 

then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced 

ecologist and consider the need for a license from Natural England 

prior to commencing works (with regard to bats). 

 

Newt Officer Thank you for sending that through, I agree that a PWMS should be 

sufficient in this case. Of course, if the applicant would still like to take 

advantage of the Great Crested Newt district license scheme, they 

are more than welcome to enquire for more information through our 

website (https://naturespaceuk.com/) 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Full details of all representations received can be found on the Council's website. 

 

2.2 Seven Objection comments have been received and raise the following concerns: 

 Surface water drainage and increased floor risk for neighbouring properties 

 Highway safety and increased traffic  

 Damage to water pipes resulting in water supply issues 

 Impact of removing the hedge and wall on the character of the street scene 

 Loss of privacy and loss of sight and sound barrier formed by the wall and hedge from the 

neighbouring L A Lockarts Plant Hire Business and approved holiday lets. 

 The additional access being tantamount to a new business and residential use. A precedent being 

set following the refusal of previous application 07/0252/P/S73.  

 

2.3 A general comment and two support comments have been received and refer to an extra passing 

place being created, and further commercial opportunities to local tourist related businesses in the area. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The following statement has been submitted: 

 

The applicant and his family recently obtained permission to convert an outbuilding situated rear of The Old 

Farmhouse into two holiday cottages.  

 

When gaining this permission it was thought that access via the existing drive to The Old Farmhouse might be 

adequate for both their home and the holiday cottages.  On further examination, it is clear there are valid 

concerns regarding the safety of this combined access use, and so we are seeking permission for an access onto 

Mill Lane, dedicated to the holiday cottages. 

 

Having obtained at least 20 holiday cottage permissions in WODC District, it seems from speaking with my 

clients that while busy, they don't always generate as much traffic ass permanent dwellings. They are indeed 

popular, but they are almost never completely booked out.  This results in days when they are empty and so few 

if any traffic movements on those days.  Guests aren't commuters, and so they often stay at the holiday 

destination for a day and more relaxing, on such days they may not venture out. It's difficult to provide clear 

figures, but the assumption is that overall they may generate less traffic than a similar number of dwellings. 

 

The applicant and his wife have young children, and feel that anyone, future home owners of The Old Farmhouse 

included, would be rightly concerned about the occasional traffic movement from guests using the established 

Page 64



access that runs alongside The Old Farmhouse.  Children and traffic don't mix. This is a serious, potential safety 

hazard, one that they would wish to avoid. 

 

In addition, they feel that the impact upon the listed building would be reduced if a modest, separate access, 

restricted to holiday cottage use, is created in Mill Lane. 

 

It is assumed that Mill Lane is an unclassified road, and if The Old Farmhouse was not listed, an access to serve 

that dwelling, onto Mill Lane would not normally require permission. This may indicate that an access onto this 

minor road, is not seen as a major issue in highway safety terms by the Highway Authority.   There is a 2,1 

metre (7 feet) wide grass verge at this point, the lane is narrow and so traffic is slow along it, reduced speeds 

means a higher degree of highways safety for local users. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application is to be heard before the Lowlands Planning Sub-Committee as the Parish Council 

have objected to the proposal. 

 

5.2 The proposal seeks consent for the formation of a new vehicular access to serve holiday cottages 

which were approved under application reference 21/01457/FUL. 

 

5.3 The application relates to Old Farmhouse, Burford Road, Black Bourton and is a detached grade II 

listed property. 

 

5.4 The proposed new vehicular access is to be situated on Mill Lane and involves removing part of an 

existing boundary wall and hedge, the proposal includes 4 parking spaces and the installation of a 

wooden entrance gate. The new access is to be situated approximately 9.8m east of an existing access 

serving L A Lockarts Plant Hire. Additional tree planting along the boundary is also proposed.  

 

5.5 Amended drawings have been submitted as part of this application setting the proposed gates further 

into the site to allow for vehicles to wait off road whilst the gates open.   

 

5.6 Relevant planning history: 

19/00346/OUT-Construction of detached single storey dwelling and associated vehicular access and 

parking- Withdrawn. 

20/03279/HHD- Refurbishment of existing outbuilding and raising of ridge height- Approved 

Page 65



20/03280/LBC- Internal and external refurbishment of existing outbuilding including raising or ridge 

height and changes to external materials- Approved. 

21/01457/FUL-Raising the roof and conversion of existing building to form two holiday cottages- 

Approve. 

21/01458/LBC -Raising the roof and conversion of existing building to form 2 holiday cottages-Approve. 

 

5.7 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

o Principle 

o Residential Amenity 

o Visual amenity  

o Highways 

o -Impact on the setting of a grade II listed building.  

o Ecology 

 

Principle 

 

5.8 The principle of a new access and off-street parking to serve holiday lets are considered acceptable, 

subject to careful consideration of the amenity, visual, ecological and highways impacts being carefully 

considered. 

    

Residential Amenity 

 

5.9 Third party representatives have raised concerns regarding the proposed removal of part of the dry 

stone wall and hedge, as they consider that it creates a sight and sound barrier from the recently 

approved application 20/02754/FUL, for the Change of Use of land to hardstand storage for equipment 

at Lockhart Ltd. However, conditions were applied to the consent of application 20/02754/FUL, which 

required a sound barrier to be erected and a sound management plan to be submitted and approved by 

the local authority. Details of the sound barrier and sound management plan have since been submitted 

and approved as part of discharge of conditions application 21/01835/CND. The proposed removal of 

the boundary wall and hedge does not impact the approved sound barrier.  

 

5.10 Given the design of the proposed access, the amount of boundary wall and hedging which will need 

to be removed and that the approved holiday lets are of a single storey scale and set further within the 

site, your officers do not consider that the proposal would give rise to harm, in terms of neighbouring 

amenity issues, such as loss of privacy or overlooking.  

 

5.11 Therefore, your officer's consider that the proposed vehicular access will not lead to a significant 

increase in noise and disturbance, or give rise to overlooking or loss of privacy issues and as such, will 

not have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the surrounding neighbours.  

 

Visual amenity of the street scene 

 

5.12 The proposed new access will be visible within the street scene. However, given there are 

comparable openings within the immediate locality and the scale and design of the proposed, your 

officers do not consider the proposal would give rise to harm in terms of the visual amenity, that would 

warrant the refusal of this application. 

 

Highways 

 

Page 66



5.13 Third party representatives and the Parish Council have raised concerns regarding the proposed 

vehicular access and the impact it will have on the surrounding road network and highway safety.  

 

Oxfordshire County Council Highways were consulted as part of the planning process and given the low 

speeds and traffic flows in the adjacent area, cannot demonstrate that the proposal, if permitted, would 

cause such harm as to warrant the refusal of the application, for reasons of highway safety and 

convenience.  As such, OCC Highways have raised no objection subject to conditions and an 

informative.  

 

Impact on the setting of a grade II listed building 

 

5.14 Third party representatives did raise concerns with the proposed removal of the wall as they 

believed it be an ancient dry stone wall. The applicant has submitted a response to the comments that 

have been made against the application and stated that the wall was in fact built in the 80's and does not 

form part of the ancient dry stone wall of which they are referring to. The WODC Listed Building and 

Conservation Officer has been consulted with and has raised no objections as they believe the wall to 

be relatively modern and given the amount of wall which is to be removed.  

 

5.15 Your officers are required to take account of section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in considering whether to grant planning 

permission for any works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of 

preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 

possesses. With regard to the impact on the listed building, the proposed new access including removing 

part of the boundary wall is not considered to obscure the historical architecture of the existing listed 

building. Your officers consider the proposed development would respect the special qualities and 

historic context of the area and would maintain the appearance of the heritage asset given the nature of 

what is proposed and its location. As such, you officers consider the proposed development to conform 

to policies EH10 and EH11 of the Local Plan.  

 

Ecology 

 

5.16 The proposed new access involves removing part of the boundary wall and a large hedge, as such 

your officers have consulted with the WODC Biodiversity and Great Crested Newt Officer. The site 

falls within an Amber Zone for Great Crested Newts. The WODC Biodiversity Officer and the Newt 

Officer have raised no objections to this proposal subject to conditions and informatives being applied 

to the consent of the application.   

 

Other matters 

 

5.17 Concerns have been raised from neighbouring properties and the Parish Council regarding the 

impact the proposed new access would have on water pipes which run underneath the grass verge. 

Whilst your officers are unable to consider the impact the proposed development would have on the 

water pipes as part of the assessment for this planning application, your officers suggest an informative 

relating to the issue is included as part of the consent. 

 

5.18 A third party representative had requested that the applicant submits a tree survey, however given 

that the trees and not protected or within a conservation area and the scale of the development, your 

officers did not consider it to be reasonable to request that a tree survey is submitted.  

 

Page 67



5.19 Third party representatives have raised concerns regarding surface water drainage. OCC highways 

have requested that a condition is applied to the consent stating that details relating to the surface water 

drainage are submitted to and approved by the local authority before the holiday lets are occupied.   

 

5.20 A neighbouring resident has raised concerns that the additional access would be tantamount to a 

new business and residential use. Whilst your officers can only assess the subject of this application, 

your officers note that a condition was applied to the consent of the holiday lets which restricts the use.  

 

5.18 A third party representative states that there has been a precedent not to accept an additional 

access within Mill Lane following the refusal of application 07/0252/P/S73, which was also dismissed at 

appeal. The application mentioned refers to the non-compliance of condition 2 of planning permission 

05/0386/p/fp, to allow a craft workshop to be used by person other than owner of the cedars. It was 

considered that a workshop in this location, not associated with the main dwelling at the site, was not 

acceptable due to neighbouring amenity issues and did not specifically relate to a new access.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.21 In light of the above assessment, the application is recommended for approval as your officers 

consider that it complies with the provisions of policies OS2, OS4, EH2, EH3, EH11 and T4 of the 

adopted Local Plan; WODC Design Guide 2016 and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 1  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

 2  That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

 3  The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of doubt 

as to what is permitted.  

 

 4  The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on the 

approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter retained and 

used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

 5  The means of access between the land and the highway shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, lit 

and drained in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority and all ancillary works therein specified shall be undertaken in accordance with 

the said specification before first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

Page 68



 

 6  No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking area and driveways have been surfaced and 

arrangements made for all surface water to be disposed of within the site curtilage in accordance with 

details that have been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure loose materials and surface water do not encroach onto the adjacent highway to 

the detriment of road safety.  

 

 7  The works shall be completed in strict accordance with the measures outlined within the Forest Of 

Dean District Council's Precautionary Working Method Statement guidance note dated 16th May 2012 

available at: https://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/wjth1ruj/precautionary-method-ofworking- for-reptiles.pdf . 

Precautionary measures shall also include the removal of the hedge outside of the nesting bird season. If 

the removal of the hedge is required between March to August, the works shall not commence until a 

careful check for nesting birds has been completed. If bird nests are found then works must stop until 

the chicks have fledged. All the recommendations and measures shall be implemented in full according 

to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that species and habitats are protected in accordance with The Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 

amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to 

comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

 0. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant legislation 

such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

(as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the Wildlife 

and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the species and their 

roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural England would be required 

before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and eggs 

(with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works that will impact upon 

active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to ensure their protection, i.e. 

works should only be undertaken between August and February, or only after the chicks have fledged 

from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of protected 

species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced 

ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works (with 

regard to bats).  

 

Page 69



 0. Please note works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County Council by 

way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council. 

 

 0. Should the applicant encounter any issues during the development with the nearby water pipes, 

they should immediately seek advice from Thames Water directly. 

 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

(as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to individuals of the 

species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation licence from Natural 

England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and eggs 

(with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works 

that will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to 

ensure their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or 

only after the chicks have fledged from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of protected 

species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 

experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 

commencing works (with regard to bats).  

 

 2 Please note works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County 

Council by way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council. 

 

 3 Should the applicant encounter any issues during the development with the nearby water pipes, 

they should immediately seek advice from Thames Water directly. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Esther Hill 

Telephone Number: 01993 861690 

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 70



 
Application Number 21/03302/FUL 

Site Address Land Adjacent to Clovelly Cottage 

White Oak Green 

Hailey 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 24th November 2021 

Officer Kelly Murray 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Hailey Parish Council 

Grid Reference 434401 E       214001 N 

Committee Date 6th December 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Construction of a detached garage for storage not in connection with Clovelly Cottage. (Part 

retrospective). 

 

Page 71



Applicant Details: 

Mr T Payne 

C/O JPPC Chartered Town Planners  

Bagley Croft 

Hinksey Hill 

Oxford 

OX1 5BD 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Adjacent Parish Council No Comment Received. 

 

Parish Council No objection to the application. 

 

OCC Highways No Comment Received. 

 

ERS Env. Consultation Sites Mr ERS Pollution Consultation Thank you for consulting our team, I 

have looked at the application in relation to contaminated land and 

potential risk to human health.  

 

I have no objection in relation to land contamination human health 

risks from this proposed development and will not be requesting 

planning conditions 

 

Jackie McLaren  

Technical Officer - Contamination 

 

OCC Rights Of Way Field 

Officer 

No objection. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Four objections have been made, summarised as follows:- 

 

- Other dwellings here also have outbuildings and this may create an unwanted precedent; 

- The access onto the B4022 is dangerous and there have been accidents; 

-The stone material and building method is poor; 

- There is visibility from Wood Lane due to the further access way that has been created; 

- Potential for conversion/use for separate residential purposes; 

- A commercial sized workshop/ garage is out of keeping with the character of the lane; 

- Working on vehicles is likely to cause noise and disturbance; 

- Potential security risk and alarms likely to be set off but without anyone on site to switch them off. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicant makes the following points in support of the application:- 

 

- All physical works are (largely) consistent with planning approval 15/01432/HHD. 

Page 72



-  This application now seeks to regularise the use to one which strays outside the restrictions of 

condition 4.  The use is essentially the same - for the storage of cars personal to the applicant just that 

the association with the adjoining land/house has been severed. 

-  The intention is not to use the garage for commercial purposes (the applicant owns a large 

commercial premises in Eynsham from which employment based activities occur and will remain) but to 

continue its usage for residential storage. 

- The premises will be used solely by the applicant and not as a commercial venture. Nobody will be 

able to distinguish the use in character or activity from a conventional C3 ancillary use. 

- It is recognised that a conventional commercial use in this location has the potential to fall foul of the 

Council's restrictive employment location policies, however a use for residential storage and ad hoc 

workshop use here which could be conditioned as personal to the applicant would not have the same 

impact. 

- The subdivision of the land has been well-conceived as the garage has plentiful space around it and 

benefits from its own established access way.  Adjacent Clovelly Cottage retains a more than adequately 

proportioned garden; the two uses can operate independently and are sufficiently separated from each 

other (as too is the garage from neighbours as evidenced in the 2015 delegated officer report) such that 

the proposal would not be "un-neighbourly". 

- The access way to the land is separate to Clovelly Cottage which has its own access and parking to the 

rear.  The two can operate independently without friction.  The 2 metre boarded fence running the 

shared boundary provides a good degree of protection and screening from a building which has been 

moderated to single storey and incorporates a hipped roof to negate any concern relating to bulk. 

- Vehicular movements associated with the use would be negligible.  The applicant would infrequently 

need to or find time to visit the site as he is fully employed in Eynsham.  The trip rates would be 

occasional to support storage of his motor vehicles which are not kept for being daily run-arounds 

- The use hasn't actually changed from what was permitted in 2015; 

- A residential storage use in this location would have no perceptible impact. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

H6NEW Existing housing 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This is a part-retrospective application for the construction of a garage/work shop for domestic 

storage on Wood Lane, in Whiteoak Green to the north of Witney.  The land to which the proposal 

relates was previously approved as part of and ancillary to the residential planning unit of Clovelly 

Cottage, but this unit has been recently sub-divided, Clovelly Cottage and its reduced curtilage having 

now been sold, whilst the applicant has retained the land the subject of this application, whose title is 

registered separately from that of Clovelly Cottage at HM Land Registry. 

 

5.2 In 2015, when this land still formed part of the title to Clovelly Cottage owned by the applicant, 

permission 15/01432/HHD was granted for the construction of a garage/workshop ancillary to the 

residential use, for the storage of the applicant's motor vehicles. The plans submitted with the current 

application relate to a building with the same floor print as that permitted in 2015, but with 

modifications to the roof, materials and changes to the location of windows and doors.  It is therefore 

not an implementation of the approved scheme but rather is an unauthorised building. 

Page 73



 

5.3 Clovelly Cottage is one of a handful of dwellings located to the north of the Bird in Hand public 

house sited in a broadly linear pattern along Wood Lane, which leads onto the B4022.  To the west of 

this road lies the AONB.  Many of the dwellings have large gardens and are widely spaced within a rural 

setting comprising numerous hedgerows and trees and within a short distance of an area of woodland 

known as Singe Wood. Prior to the sub-division, Clovelly Cottage benefitted from a generous curtilage 

within which, prior to 2015 there were already two outbuildings, one a garage in the approximate 

current location of the current incomplete workshop and another, to the rear of the site, a derelict 

shed/small stable.  In the delegated report for the 2015 permission, the officer noted the large footprint 

of the proposed replacement garage (this being twice the size of the existing garage) but took into 

consideration other large outbuildings in the vicinity.  The officer was of the view that the garage was 

sufficiently distanced from neighbouring properties not to impact on neighbouring amenity in an adverse 

way. Permission was granted with a condition that the garage be used only for ancillary purposes, as is 

usual practice where consent is given for residential outbuildings. 

 

5.4 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.5 The principal issue is whether the sub-division of the original residential planning unit and the 

fencing-off of the application land to create a new planning unit is acceptable.  If consent were granted it 

would have the effect not only of allowing the large workshop/garage to remain but also of granting 

consent for a change of use of the application land from residential to a storage use for his cars, but 

without association with any existing residential unit.  The applicant in his statement within the 2015 

application said that he wished to store classic cars and to use the garage for maintenance and 

restoration work as well as potentially to carry out woodwork projects.  In the current application, 

"residential storage" is given as the proposed use and no mention is made of any works to be carried 

out, although it is arguable that this is implicit in an application for a workshop. It is stated that the new 

use is not un-neighbourly because Clovelly Cottage retains a well-proportioned garden and the garage 

has plentiful space around it, has its own access and can therefore operate independently.   

 

5.6  Without the benefit of an existing association with a residential dwelling Council policy requires 

justification to be made for development in villages and the open countryside.  This proposal constitutes 

isolated and unsustainable development for which no adequate justification has been made.  

 

Highways 

 

5.7 Officers note residents' concerns about the safety of the access onto the main road.  Highways have 

been chased for a response but at the time of writing this report there has been no response. 

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.8 Although the applicant describes the proposed use of the garage as domestic, it is difficult to see 

how this is in practice possible where there is no associated residential use of the land.  The residential 

tie ordinarily carries with it certain implicit constraints in relation to type and level of noise and hours of 

activity which operate to neighbours' mutual benefit and which would not be present here, where the 

applicant could come and go at will with less incentive to foster good relations with his neighbours.  

Without a residential presence on site, there would arguably be more freedom to use land in a more 

anti-social manner to the detriment of the character of the surrounding area.   Although conditions 

Page 74



might go some way to addressing potential noise, disturbance and preventing outdoor storage, they 

would not be able to cater adequately for the inevitable associated changes that would accrue over time, 

in terms of, for example, the number and type of vehicular movements, deterioration of the condition of 

buildings, maintenance of surrounding land, all of which would by a process of accretion inevitably 

operate further to impact adversely on the character of the land and on the wider residential area.  

Moreover, by granting permission in this case it would become more difficult to resist granting 

permission for other similar proposals.   

 

Siting and design 

 

5.9 Although the building is the same size and similar in design to what was approved in 2015, the size is 

nevertheless substantial and was only permitted (i) on the basis of the very large capacity (c. 1 acre) of 

the previous plot; (ii) the lack of visibility from the street scene; and (iii) on the basis of similar very large 

residential outbuildings in the near vicinity.  At least two of these factors no longer pertain to this 

application for a non-residential building in its own, smaller, plot. 

 

5.10 White Oak Green is considered to be an open countryside location and as such the policy of 

restraint applies.  Policy H6 provides that sub-division of existing dwellings will respect the character of 

the surrounding area and will not unacceptably affect the environment of people living in that area.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.11 In Officers' view the creation of a new free-standing storage/workshop use, even if as stated by the 

applicant it is only intended for hobby purposes would nevertheless be incongruous, inappropriate and 

unsustainable development in this location. Due to the lack of association with residential use there 

would be potential for noise and disturbance including increased vehicular activity that would be 

incompatible with the residential character of the area and the amenity of occupants of adjacent 

properties, contrary to policies OS2 and H6 of the WOLP 2030.  The size of the proposed building 

would further allow for a use that potentially exceeds a domestic hobby use when considered in the 

context of a free-standing non-residential planning unit. For these reasons and those given above, the 

application is recommended for refusal.      

 

5.12 It should be noted that County Highways have not yet responded to consultation and depending on 

that response, there may be a further, highway safety reason for refusal. 

 

6 CONDITIONS/REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1  The subdivision of the residential planning unit at Clovelly Cottage to create an independent and 

unrelated storage use in an unsustainable location would by reason of the potential for increased noise 

and disturbance be incompatible with adjoining uses and would have a harmful impact on the amenity of 

existing residents and the wider countryside contrary to policy OS2 of the adopted WOLP 2031. By 

reason of its large size, visibility from the street scene and its proposed use unassociated with any 

planning unit the proposal fails to respect the residential character of the immediate area to the 

detriment of the amenity of the neighbouring residents contrary to policies OS2 and H6 of the WOLP 

2031. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



 

Contact Officer: Kelly Murray 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 24th November 2021 

Page 76



 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and date of 

Committee 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee: 

Monday 6 December 2021 

Report Number Agenda Item No. 5 

Subject Progress on Enforcement Cases 

Wards affected As specified in Annex A 

Accountable officer Phil Shaw, Business Manager, Development Management  

Email: phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk  

Author Kim Smith, Principal Planner (Enforcement)  

Tel: 01993 861676 Email: kim.smith@westoxon.gov.uk  

Summary/Purpose To inform the Sub-Committee of the current situation and progress in 

respect of enforcement investigations 

Annex Annex A – Schedule of cases (Sections A to C) 

Recommendation That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations 

detailed in Sections A – C of Annex A be noted.  

Corporate priorities  1.1. N/A 

Key Decision 1.2. No 

Exempt 1.3. No 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 5

mailto:phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk
mailto:kim.smith@westoxon.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND AND MAIN POINTS 

1.1. Section A of Annex A contains cases where the requirements of a formal notice 

have not been met within the compliance period (page 3). 

1.2. Section B contains cases where formal action has been taken but the compliance 

period has yet to expire (page 5). 

1.3. Section C contains cases which are high priority but where the expediency of 

enforcement action has yet to be considered (page 6). 

1.4. The Sub-Committee should be aware that the cases included in this update 

constitute only a small number of the overall enforcement caseload across the 

District, which at the time of writing consists of 324 live cases. The high priority 

cases for both Uplands and Lowlands constitute approximately 20% of the total 

caseload. 

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1. There are no financial implications resulting from this report.   

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1. Not applicable, as the report is for information.  

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

4.1. None

Page 78



Annex A 

SECTION A – PROGRESS ON CASES WHERE THE REQUIREMENTS OF A FORMAL  

NOTICE HAVE NOT BEEN MET WITHIN THE COMPLIANCE PERIOD 

The cases listed in the following section are those where a notice has been served and the requirements have not been met within the compliance 

period or there has been an unauthorised display of advertisements.  This means that an offence is likely to have been committed and that the Council 

need to consider the next steps to secure compliance.  In some cases this will entail the initiation of legal proceedings to bring about a prosecution.  

Site Address  Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

27 Cherry Tree 

Way 

Unauthorised 

storage of 

materials 

relating to the 

occupiers 

business. 

EN 565 was issued in April 2016 

requiring removal of the items 

relating to the occupiers business. 

The EN was complied with and 

the case closed. 

Investigation in to a recent 

complaint has confirmed that the 

unauthorised materials are being 

stored on the land. 

A further EN was issued in order 

to address storage on an area of 

land not included in the original 

notice on 18 March 2020. 

EN was not complied with 

Injunction has been granted which has given 21 days from service of the Order for 

compliance with the EN.A site visit will be undertaken to confirm compliance. 

31 Woodley 

Green, Witney 

A material 

change of use of 

the land from 

C3 residential 

use to Sui 

Generis Large 

HMO (house in 

multiple 

occupation). 

EN issued on 17 June 2020 

requiring permanent cessation of 

the use as a large HMO within 30 

days of the notice coming into 

effect, that being 15 August 2020. 

EN complied with. CLOSE 

P
age 79



Site Address  Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Entrance to New 

Yatt Business 

Centre 

Unauthorised 

change of use of 

land from 

agriculture to 

builders 

yard/storage 

PCN issued and no response 

received. EN not complied with. 

The next step is to consider the expediency of formal legal action to secure 

compliance with the notice. 

Reynolds Farm, 

Cassington 

Unauthorised 

works and 

change of use of 

outbuildings to 

residential use 

without the 

requisite 

consents. 

 Reynolds 

Farmhouse is a 

recently listed 

building (Grade 

11 

Retrospective applications were 

submitted in an attempt to 

regularise the unauthorised 

developments. 

Planning permission has been granted for the retrospective works to the 

outbuilding located adjacent to St Peters Church. 

An Enforcement Notice was issued in respect of unauthorised works to the barn 

located to the west of the main farmhouse. An enforcement appeal was dismissed 

and the EN upheld with corrections requiring the removal of two front porch 

extensions and lowering the eaves and ridge height of the building by 6th July 2020. 

A site visit confirmed that the corrected EN had not been complied with. 

Following the commencement of legal proceedings the contravener has agreed to 

comply with the notice by the end of the year. 

 

 

SECTION B – PROGRESS ON ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS WHERE FORMAL ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN. 

The cases listed in Section B are ones where a notice has been served but the compliance date has not yet passed. 

Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Land at Mount 

Pleasant Farm, 

Northmoor 

Unauthorised 

storage use.  

Unauthorised 

residential 

caravan 

Construction of a 

motocross track 

Two Enforcement Notices were 

issued in respect of the identified 

breaches (storage use and 

unauthorised residential caravan) 

Both were subject of appeals. 

In respect of the storage use and the recently constructed motocross track on the 

land two further enforcement notices have been issued which seek to address the 

Inspectors comments in terms of the quashed notice. These notices are now the 

subject of appeals to the Inspectorate. 

In terms of the residential caravan that has been sited elsewhere on the land 

Officers have been advised that the residential use has ceased. The removal of the 

P
age 80



and use of the 

land for 

motocross. 

A further breach on the land has 

recently occurred that being the 

construction of a motocross track. 

The EN appeal in respect of the 

residential use was dismissed by 

the Inspectorate and the EN 

upheld. The cessation of the 

residential use and removal of the 

caravan from the land was 

required by 20 July 2020.A  site 

visit  confirmed that the EN in 

respect of the residential use has 

been complied with simply by 

relocating the caravan elsewhere 

on the land. 

Following an appeal the EN in 

respect of the storage use was 

quashed on the grounds that the 

Inspector considered that the 

notice failed to identify the breach 

in the terms required under 

S173(1) and (2) and that the EN 

could not be varied or corrected 

without prejudice. 

 

 

 

mobile home from the land will be considered as part of the Enforcement Notice 

Appeal relating to use of the land for unauthorised storage purposes. 

A Public Inquiry in respect of the EN Appeals took place earlier this year. Awaiting 

the outcome of the EN Appeals 

 

  

P
age 81



SECTION C – PROGRESS ON OTHER ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS IDENTIFIED AS BEING HIGH PRIORITY 

Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

The Paddocks, 

The Weald, 

Bampton 

Breaches of 

conditions attached 

to planning 

permissions for the 

individual plots on 

the gypsy site.  

Change of use of a 

number of plots on 

the land to 

unauthorised 

caravan sites and 

extension to the 

caravan site. 

At the end of 2018 a team of 

officers visited the site and 

personally served Planning 

Contravention Notices on all of 

the caravans on all of the plots in 

order to ascertain who is 

occupying the caravans together 

with information about their 

personal circumstances in order 

to gain an understanding of any 

human rights issues. 

Given the complexity and time 

required to progress this case a 

specialist lawyer was instructed 

to guide your Officers on this 

matter. 

In light of the legal advice 

received further Planning 

Contravention Notices requesting 

detailed information about the 

circumstances of the occupants of 

the individual caravans on each 

of the plots were issued on 13 

June 2019.It was considered that 

this information would help 

inform the next steps in respect 

of the planning breaches on the 

land. 

Whilst the response rates were 

good in respect of a number of 

the plots they were not 

There is presently a multi -agency approach being taken to the issues arising 

at The Paddocks being led by the Councils ERS team. The site has been 

visited on a regular basis in order to assess the number of caravans on the 

plots, who is occupying the vans and any health and safety issues arising. 

Since the last update to Members planning permission has been granted for a 

maximum of 6 caravans in respect of plots 1 and 2.Not yet implemented. 

At the time of writing an application has been submitted in respect of plot 12 

(seeking permission for 9 gypsy caravans) and it is anticipated that an 

application will be submitted for plot 4.The merits of the planning application 

in respect of plot 12 are still under consideration at the time of writing.  

P
age 82



Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

consistently good across the site 

as a whole. 

Land to the 

north of Mead 

View, 

Cassington 

Road, Eynsham 

Unauthorised use of 

the land for the 

storage of builders 

materials, the siting 

of metal container s 

and parking of 

vehicles in 

association with a 

stone masonry 

business 

This site is located within the 

Green Belt and the floodplain. 

A site visit in early 2021 

confirmed that there is still 

storage of non- agriculturally 

related items on the land 

including stone, scaffolding and 

general plant and tools associated 

with the stone masonry business. 

A number of metal containers are 

also located on the land which it 

is claimed have been on the land 

since 2007/8. A large porta cabin 

that was on site has been 

removed. 

 

Following a recent meeting on site with the landowner and his agent it is 

anticipated that a CLEUD application is to be submitted in an attempt to 

regularise the use. 

Lower Haddon 

Farm, Bampton 

Unauthorised 

residential caravan 

Unfettered residential uses in the 

open countryside are unlikely to 

be acceptable on the planning 

merits unless there is an 

operational/ functional need that 

cannot be met in any other way 

Following investigation it is considered that the development is lawful. 

CLOSE 

Home Farm, 

Barnard Gate 

Unauthorised use of 

the land for 

residential caravans 

The site is authorised for a 

maximum of 5 pitches for 

occupation by gypsy families. As 

a result of this enforcement 

investigation planning permission 

was granted under 19/01839/S73 

When last reported Members were advised that the number of vehicles and 

caravans stored on the land has reduced. However, it would appear that there 

may be further residential caravans on the land where previously a large number 

of vehicles and caravans were being stored. The extent of the storage use and 

possible occupation of additional caravans is considered by Officers harmful in 

planning terms. 

P
age 83



Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

for an additional pitch taking it to 

a maximum of 6 pitches. 

The landowner has not responded to your Officers request to meet on site in 

order to discuss the alleged breach. 

In light of the above the next step is consider the expediency of taking formal 

enforcement action. 

 

Land at Thorney 

Leys 

Non -compliance 

with the approved 

landscaping scheme 

A site visit confirmed breaches of 

the approved scheme 

Since March 2021 progress has been made in terms of securing landscaping and 

planting maintenance on the areas of land relating to Sovereign Housing. 

However, the planting on land outside of the control of SH has failed and the 

site looks unkempt. 

Officers are seeking to progress the full implementation of the approved 

landscaping scheme across the site working with the relevant interests of which 

there are more than one 

Weald Manor 

Farm, Bampton 

Works not in 

accordance with the 

approved 

plans(15/02150/FUL) 

for the range of 

buildings to the rear 

of the site; 

Unauthorised 

outbuilding and 

extension of 

curtilage: 

Unauthorised 

conversion and 

change of use of 

barn to a dwelling. 

The contravener and his agent 

have been in discussions with your 

Officers regarding how to 

progress the breaches. 

However, other than the 

regularisation of the extensions to 

the dwelling that fronts onto 

Weald Street there has been no 

progress on the breaches 

alleged/cited in column two of this 

table despite advice that has been 

given albeit some time ago. 

No progress has been made in respect of regularising the remaining breaches of 

control at Weald Manor Farm. In light of this and given planning harms identified 

by Officers, the expediency of taking formal planning enforcement action is 

under consideration at the time of writing. 

50 Richens 

Drive, Carterton 

Unauthorised porch 

extension 

Retrospective planning application 

17/03250/HHD was refused and 

dismissed at appeal. 

EN complied with. CLOSE 

P
age 84



Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

A further planning application for 

an amended porch was refused 

under ref 20/00016/HHD. This is 

now the subject of an appeal. 

 

EN issued in light of the failed 

appeals. 

Crawley Inn, 

Crawley 

Unauthorised 

residential caravans 

It would appear from recent site 

visit that there are caravans 

located on land behind the car 

park serving the pub. 

The landowner is claiming a lawful use in respect of the siting of residential 

caravans on the land. To date no CLEUD application has been received. 

17 Ashcombe 

Close, Witney 

Unauthorised 

enclosure of the 

front garden 

The front garden is enclosed by a 

wall greater than a metre in height  

In visual terms the unauthorised wall is considered harm the visual character and 

appearance of the area. 

Following discussions with the land owner the wall is to be modified within 

‘permitted development’ parameters by the end of the year. 

Lane End House, 

Filkins 

Unauthorised 

change of use of 

land to garden and 

the erection of 

outbuildings 

This site is on the edge of the 

village and within the 

Conservation Area. 

Planning permission has been granted and attached conditions discharged. 

CLOSE 

Lavendar 

Cottage, Minster 

Lovell 

Non-compliance 

with conditions 

attached to 

17/03978/HHD- 

Creation of 

hardstanding for car 

parking. 

Siting of wooden 

outbuilding within 

car parking area. 

Hardstanding has been 

constructed without discharging 

details in respect of the following: 

Access construction details and 

hard and soft landscaping scheme 

not approved 

Wooden building located on the 

parking area has not been 

approved. 

This matter has become somewhat protracted in light of staff changes that have 

taken place within the Service. A new Officer has been assigned this case who 

will be progressing the matter as expeditiously as possible.  

P
age 85



Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

34 Woodford 

Mill, Witney 

Unauthorised 

replacement 

windows 

Planning application to retain was 

refused and an appeal 

subsequently dismissed. 

EN issued and appealed. Appeal 

subsequently withdrawn. 

Compliance with the EN extended to June 2022. 

Little Willow, 

Eynsham 

Alleged 

unauthorised 

hardstanding and 

extension of the site 

onto adjoining land. 

The contravener has met on site 

with Officers claiming that there is 

no breach. 

An EN was issued earlier this year in respect of the hardstanding but was 

subsequently withdrawn for technical reasons. The next step is to consider the 

expediency of taking formal enforcement action by way of the issue of a further 

Enforcement Notice in order to address the planning harms identified by 

Officers. 

Land South of 

Main Road, 

Curbridge 

Unauthorised 

change of use of 

land from 

agriculture to 

storage of 

builders/waste 

materials. 

Unauthorised hard 

standings. 

The landowner is claiming that the 

use of the land for storage 

purposes is lawful. 

No CLEUD has been submitted in 

an attempt to evidence the claim. 

Officers do not consider that the 

extent of storage on the land is 

lawful.  

  

At the time of given what Officers consider to be planning harms associated 

with the storage use, the expediency of taking formal planning enforcement 

action is under consideration. 

66 Corn Street, 

Witney 

Unauthorised 

outbuilding 

Planning permission was refused 

for the retrospective building 

under 21/02061/FUL 

In light of the refusal of planning permission the expediency of taking formal 

enforcement action is under consideration at the time of writing. 

 

P
age 86



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 18th November 2021 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  20/02797/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to existing public house to include demolition of single storey extension and lean-

to's, rebuild existing barn and erection of extensions to create B+B accommodation with 

function room. Construction of detached building to provide further bedrooms and function 

room. Associated landscaping works and change of use of adjacent field to form overflow car 

park. 

Rose And Crown Shilton Burford 

Mr Martin Coldicott 

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



DELGAT 
 

2.  20/02798/LBC Brize Norton and Shilton WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to existing public house to include demolition of single storey 

extension and lean-to's, rebuild existing barn and erection of extensions to create B+B 

accommodation with function room. 

Rose And Crown Shilton Burford 

Mr Martin Coldicott 

 

 

3.  21/00582/LBC Ducklington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of two barns to create two residential dwellings 

9 Church Street Ducklington Witney 

Mr Andrew Bevan 

 

 

4.  21/00976/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Alterations and refurbishment works to The Cottage to include erection of single and two 

storey extensions, along with the construction of a detached garage block with first floor 

storage space and double garaging to serve both The Cottage and Midways. 

Demolition and removal of existing double garage within the garden of the cottage. 

Demolition of conservatory to the cottage. 

The Cottage Worton Witney 

Mr Adam Hulewicz 

 

 

5.  21/01755/FUL Carterton North East WDN 

  

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of eight 2 bed flats together with associated 

parking and access. 

10 Burford Road Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr Don Herring 

 

 

6.  21/01937/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement timber casement windows to main house and the addition of timber cladding 

and fenestration to garage 

Belham Hayes Kencot Lechlade 

Mr Joseph Jones 

 

 

Page 88



DELGAT 
 

7.  21/01938/LBC Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement timber casements due to material decay and failure of the three dormer timber 

windows in the attic of Belham Hayes. Replacement casements to match the existing like for 

like. A replacement timber casement on the first floor north elevation and two replacement 

timber casements on the ground floor east elevation. The refurbishment of the garage 

outbuilding, including new timber cladding on the gable end, new aluminium framed glazing 

and sliding doors, set behind new timber external doors. 

Belham Hayes Kencot Lechlade 

Mr Joseph Jones 

 

 

8.  21/02028/LBC Bampton and Clanfield WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

To erect a conservatory to the rear of the property. Simple lean-to timber construction. 

3mX4mX5m 

Dove House Bridge Street Bampton 

Mr Damian Booth 

 

 

9.  21/02021/CND Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 6 (construction management strategy), 7 (cycle parking facilities) and 

10 (integrated bat roosting and nest opportunities for birds) of planning application 

20/02017/RES 

Land East Of Monahan Way Carterton 

Mr Jon Bryan 

 

 

10.  21/02026/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

First floor rear extension (Amended) 

Millers House Hardwick Witney 

Alexandra Zimmermann 

 

 

11.  21/02027/HHD Bampton and Clanfield WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a conservatory to the rear of the property 

Dove House Bridge Street Bampton 

Mr Damian Booth 

 

 

Page 89



DELGAT 
 

12.  21/02109/S73 North Leigh APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of permission 20/01756/FUL to allow changes to the approved plans 

of proposed buildings 13,15, 16 and 17 

Eynsham Hall North Leigh Witney 

C/o Agent 

 

 

13.  21/02229/S73 North Leigh APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of Listed Building consent 20/01757/LBC to allow changes to the 

approved plans of proposed buildings 13,15, 16 and 17 

Eynsham Hall North Leigh Witney 

E H Hotels 2018 Limited 

 

 

14.  21/02276/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

DEEMED 

 

  

Discharge of conditions 14 (details of bat rooting features and bird nesting opportunities), 15 

(details of external lighting) and 16 (comprehensive landscape scheme) of planning permission 

20/01120/FUL 

Land East Of 90 High Street Standlake 

Mr brian cade 

 

 

15.  21/02359/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Single and two storey rear extensions (amended plans) 

8 Parklands Freeland Witney 

Mr E Tweedie And Mrs A Tweedie-Wood 

 

 

16.  21/02391/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Conversion of existing stables to create 6 holiday let units. 

Sturt Farm Oxford Road Burford 

Sturt Farm Burford Ltd 

 

 

17.  21/02499/CND Carterton North West SPL 

  

APPROVED:-REFUSED:- 

Blenheim Court Sycamore Drive Carterton 

Ms Marita Ford 

 

 

Page 90



DELGAT 
 

18.  21/02511/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 12 (landscaping scheme), 14 (land contamination assessment) and 16 

(construction traffic management plan) of planning permission 17/00629/FUL 

Land To The Rear Of 65 High Street Standlake 

- 

 

 

19.  21/02529/CND Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (schedule of materials) and 6 (Precautionary Working Methods 

statement) of planning permission 21/01537/FUL 

Hilltop Garden Centre Witney Road Ramsden 

David Lazenby 

 

 

20.  21/02587/FUL Carterton North West APP 

  

Refurbishment and conversion of existing dwelling into two properties and erection of a 

further detached dwelling together with associated works. 

Fairseat Arkell Avenue Carterton 

Mrs Vicki Owen 

 

 

21.  21/02642/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 13 (comprehensive landscape scheme) and 15 (amended travel plan) 

of planning permission 20/03222/FUL 

Stanton Harcourt Church Of England Primary School Main Road Stanton Harcourt 

Ros Avery 

 

 

22.  21/02639/S73 Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 (to allow alteration to the size of the North western corner of the 

extension), and removal of conditions 6 (lighting details) and 7 (bat and bird nesting details) of 

planning permssion 21/01209/HHD.  

Ty Nant Kenns Farm Alvescot Road 

Mr And Mrs Garbutt 

 

 

Page 91



DELGAT 
 

23.  21/02668/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (external wall sample panel), 6 (programme of archaeological work), 

9 (full surface water drainage plan), 14 (scheme for the landscaping) and 16 (plan indicating 

boundary treatment) of planning permission 20/01119/FUL 

Park Farm Lower End Alvescot 

Mr Joe Harter 

 

 

24.  21/02678/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing rear garden room. Erection of a single storey oak framed extension 

(Amended) 

The Laurels Filkins Road Langford 

Mr And Mrs Smith 

 

 

25.  21/02679/LBC Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to replace the existing rear garden room with a single storey 

oak framed extension (Amended) 

The Laurels Filkins Road Langford 

Mr And Mrs Smith 

 

 

26.  21/02705/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Demolition of conservatory. New roof, windows and doors, reconfigured first floor layout. 

Cladding of existing dwelling. 

The Gables High Cogges Witney 

Mr Lee Warriner 

 

 

27.  21/02708/S73 Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Removal of condition 15 of permission 17/00629/FUL to commence road works 

Land To The Rear Of 65 High Street Standlake 

C/O Agent 

 

 

28.  21/02730/CND Alvescot and Filkins DEEMED 

 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 10 (lighting design strategy for biodiversity) of planning permission 

20/03340/HHD 

Broadwell House Broadwell Lechlade 

Peter Jackson 

 

 

Page 92



DELGAT 
 

29.  21/02776/S73 Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

REF 

  

Removal of condition 4 of planning permission 20/01120/FUL to allow dwellings permitted 

development rights. 

Land East Of 90 High Street Standlake 

Butler And Duke Ltd 

 

 

30.  21/02818/HHD Ducklington WDN 

  

Proposed rear two storey extension and dormer on front elevation 

64 Well Lane Curbridge Witney 

Mr Mark Tredwell 

 

 

31.  21/02847/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement on a like for like basis of first floor window due to extensive rot in the wooden 

window frame. 

The Old Post House Old Minster Lovell Minster Lovell 

Mr Michael Spencer 

 

 

32.  21/02848/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (roof sample), 5 (proposed timber cladding sample), 6 (full surface 

water drainage scheme), 7 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities), 9 

(details of external lighting), 10 (comprehensive landscape scheme) and 11 (evacuation plan) of 

planning permission 20/02634/FUL 

Partlows Barn Barnard Gate Witney 

Mr and Ms Henman 

 

 

33.  21/02856/CND Ducklington APP 

  

Discharge if condition 9 (construction traffic management plan), 15 (biodiversity offsetting 

scheme) and 22 (surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 20/01338/FUL 

Land Opposite Windrush Drive Cottage Burford Road Minster Lovell 

Chris Hayter 

 

 

34.  21/02905/FUL Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing offices to create four flats along with the construction of a further flat 

in car park together with associated works 

6 Church Green Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Nick Hopcroft 

 

 

Page 93



DELGAT 
 

35.  21/02963/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Erection of timber, pent-roof garden shed 

14 Heron Drive Witney Oxfordshire 

Miss Heather Rapley 

 

 

36.  21/02971/HHD Ducklington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Minor external amendments to 10/1707/P/FP (retrospective) 

16 Bartholomew Close Ducklington Witney 

Sarah Keane 

 

 

37.  21/02982/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Replace windows and doors 

5 Upper Crescent Minster Lovell Witney 

MR & MRS I CROSS 

 

 

38.  21/02983/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

  

Replace windows and doors 

5 Upper Crescent Minster Lovell Witney 

MR & MRS I CROSS 

 

 

39.  21/02985/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Front and rear Extensions, loft conversion and associated works to existing dwelling 

(Amended) 

10 Upper Crescent Minster Lovell Witney 

Mr & Ms Forde & Finch 

 

 

40.  21/02997/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

To demolish conservatory and erect single storey extension on rear elevation 

25 Old Witney Road Eynsham Witney 

Mr Carl Tysom 

 

 

41.  21/03011/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Rear single storey infill extension 

95 Burford Road Witney Oxfordshire 

Mrs Elizabeth Ablett 

 

 

Page 94



DELGAT 
 

42.  21/03017/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Siting of a temporary mobile dwelling, along with the erection of timber fencing and 

construction of a new access and hardstanding area (part retrospective). 

Land South Of Old London Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Sam Thomas 

 

 

43.  21/03018/CND Bampton and Clanfield APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 7 (access between the land and the highway) of planning permission 

20/00720/HHD 

Weald Manor Farm Weald Street Weald 

Mr Joan Freeman 

 

 

44.  21/03021/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed rear extension, 2 new dormers and replacement garage 

The Old Coach House Bull Lane Aston 

Boyle 

 

 

45.  21/03022/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey garden room extension and loft conversion 

3 Pinnocks Peace Kencot Lechlade 

Sally Penfold 

 

 

46.  21/03037/HHD Carterton North West APP 

  

Conversion of garage to form annexe with link extension to dwelling. 

2 Snowberry Court Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Learmonth 

 

 

47.  21/03044/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Insertion of window to north elevation 

Unit 7-8 Lakeside Industrial Estate Stanton Harcourt 

Felicity Brooks 

 

 

Page 95



DELGAT 
 

48.  21/03057/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Erection of a two storey side extension and first floor rear extension. (Amended) 

27 Calais Dene Bampton Oxfordshire 

Mr Marc Lester 

 

 

49.  21/03059/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension. 

35 Bluebell Way Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Bach 

 

 

50.  21/03061/HHD Witney East REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to raise the roof height above existing kitchen and installation of roof lights 

(amended) 

74 Newland Witney Oxfordshire 

Miss Mandy Beckett 

 

 

51.  21/03072/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Conversion of a barn to one dwelling involving raising roof height, alterations and access and 

landscaping works. (part retrospective). 

Partlows Barn Barnard Gate Witney 

Mr And Mrs Henman 

 

 

52.  21/03084/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Increase in roof height to provide second floor living space and erection of single storey rear 

extension. 

Folly View Alvescot Road Black Bourton 

Mr Michael Tarpey 

 

 

53.  21/03088/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a two storey side extension along with construction of a detached double garage 

Gaston Cottage Church Lane Aston 

Mr and Mrs Walker 

 

 

Page 96



DELGAT 
 

54.  21/03089/FUL Witney South APP 

  

Alterations to include the erection of single storey rear extension, the addition of a new fire 

exit and 3 new windows to West elevation 

Unit 23 Avenue One Witney 

Ms Hettie Bowles 

 

 

55.  21/03090/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension. 

Shuttles Cottage Chapel Road South Leigh 

Mr And Mrs N Baish 

 

 

56.  21/03104/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a detached carport 

The Old Rectory Kencot Lechlade 

Mr Michael Leggo 

 

 

57.  21/03112/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Erection of a single storey front extension (amended plans) 

24 Park Road Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr S King 

 

 

58.  21/03113/LBC Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to re-build brick chimney stack. 

63 Corn Street Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr Paul Currah 

 

 

59.  21/03115/FUL Witney South APP 

  

Installation of three self-service car wash bays. 

Witney Service Station Welch Way Witney 

Motor Fuel Group Ltd 

 

 

60.  21/03127/FUL Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Erection of detached dwelling and associated works 

27 Aston Road Brighthampton Witney 

Mr Mark Drewett 

 

 

Page 97



DELGAT 
 

61.  21/03150/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of a first floor front extension 

3 Foxburrow Lane Hailey Witney 

Mr And Mrs Mills 

 

 

62.  21/03160/FUL Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to existing shop front entrance and installation of 4 air conditioning condenser 

units to rear elevation. 

Unit 5 Woolgate Shopping Centre Witney 

Ms Paula Bill 

 

 

63.  21/03184/HHD Witney East APP 

  

Erection of a single storey replacement rear extension 

198 Wadards Meadow Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr M Upton 

 

 

64.  21/03190/HHD Witney East APP 

  

New front dormer and roof light in front of roof and two rear roof lights as part of loft 

conversion 

5 Lavender View Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Trowbridge 

 

 

65.  21/03197/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Single storey rear extension for kitchen dining area and utlity 

38 Moor Avenue Witney Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs Wiltshire 

 

 

66.  21/03196/CND North Leigh REF 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (sample of proposed glass) of planning permission 20/00427/HHD 

34 Bridewell Close North Leigh Witney 

Mr Peter Simpkin 

 

 

Page 98



DELGAT 
 

67.  21/03199/HHD Witney North APP 

  

Demolition of existing conservatory and outbuildings. Construction of single storey rear and 

side extension to main house and single storey annexe in garden. Replacement of existing 

windows to main house and alterations internally. 

The Octaves 36 New Yatt Road Witney 

Mrs Lorraine Jarvis 

 

 

68.  21/03210/FUL Carterton North East APP 

  

Construction of light industrial unit attached to existing unit. 

11 Ventura Park Broadshires Way Carterton 

Mr Tim Adair 

 

 

69.  21/03212/HHD Ducklington APP 

  

Conversion of roof space with construction of rear dormer and raised ridge line. Works to 

include rendering of external walls. 

6 Aston Road Ducklington Witney 

Mr Bishop 

 

 

70.  21/03223/CLP Eynsham and Cassington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of lawfulness (erection of a single storey rear extension) 

26 Hazeldene Close Eynsham Witney 

MrS Donna Worboys 

 

 

71.  21/03246/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

erection of a single storey side extension 

12 Barley Crescent Carterton Oxfordshire 

Mrs Rebecca Widdowson 

 

 

72.  21/03255/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Erection of single storey extension to form wet room and boot room. 

17 Park Road North Leigh Witney 

Mr John Mitchell 

 

 

73.  21/03260/HHD Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and construction of new single storey rear 

extension 

79 Wytham View Eynsham Witney 

Mr & Mrs Cox 

 

 

Page 99



DELGAT 
 

74.  21/03275/CND Witney Central APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 5 (Construction Method Statement) of planning permission 

20/00858/FUL 

Ash Close Gloucester Place Witney 

Mrs Sarah Beresford And Mr James Nellist 

 

 

75.  21/03306/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 8 (rapid EV charging points) of planning permission 21/00691/RES 

Land At Butts Piece Main Road Stanton Harcourt 

. 

 

 

76.  21/03341/PN42 Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

P2NRQ 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension (3.5m x 2.30m height to eaves/4.4m max height). 

12 Park Farm Place Northmoor Witney 

Mr And Mrs Norman 

 

 

77.  21/03458/NMA Witney West APP 

  

Non material amendment to 18/03206/RES to allow Plots 833-834, 836-837, 845-846 

amended from stone to brick and Plots 795, 825, 838 amended from stone to render). 

Land At West Witney Downs Road Curbridge 

Mrs Rachel Whiting 

 

 

 

Page 100


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Progress on Enforcement Cases
	6 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers

